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January 24, 2019

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Public Health Services to
enter into an agreement with Northeast Deaf and Hard of Hearing^Services, Inc., 56 Old Suncook
Road, Concord, NH 03301 to provide educational resources and-deaf mentorship activities to families
with an infant or young child who has a suspected or confirmed hearing loss in order to improve
language development for their infant and child, in an amount not to exceed $97,500, upon date of
Governor and the Executive Council approval through March 31, 2020. 100% Federal Funds.

Funds are available in the following account for State Fiscal Year (SFY) 2019, and are
anticipated to be available in SFY 2020, upon the availability and continued appropriation of funds in
the future operating budgets, with authority to adjust amounts within the price limitation and adjust
encumbrances between State Fiscal Years through the Budget Office, without approval from Governor
and Executive Council if needed and justified.

05-95-90-902010-3387 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEFT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS,

HHS: DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF POPULATION HEALTH AND COMMUNITY
SERVICES. NEWBORN HEARING

Fiscal

Year
Class/Account Class Title Job Number Total Amount

SFY 2019 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90004004 $48,750

SFY 2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90004004 $48,750

Total $97,500

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is to provide educational resources and deaf mentorship activities to
families with infant or young child who have a hearing loss. The New Hampshire Early Hearing
Detection and Intervention Program (EHDI) established in 2000, provides family-centered, statewide
newborn hearing screening and intervention. The goals of the EHDI Program funding are to continue to
increase the number of diagnosed infants who are enrolled in early intervention, engage in family



His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council >

Page 2 of 3

supports, and provide educational resources and mentorship to families who have a child who is deaf
or hard of hearing.

This agreement will allow Northeast Deaf and Hard of Hearing to provide families with
opportunities, to connect with deaf mentors. Mentorship and educational resources are critical for
supporting families whose infant was diagnosed with a hearing loss. The certified deaf mentor will
provide education, resources and support to parents of infants and young children who have a
confirmed hearing loss and to assist them to. obtain necessary early intervention services in language
development.

In 2017, 3.4% of infants' screened did not pass the newborn hearing screen and were referred
for an audiological diagnostic evaluation. Of those infants who were referred for a diagnostic evaluation,
5% (21 infants) were identified with a permanent hearing loss. At this time 2018 data is not complete
but based on previous years it is anticipated that approximately 20 infants will be served.

The following performance measures/objectives will be used to measure the effectiveness of the
agreement:

•  Attend hundred percent (100%) of the Department's Quality Improvement and Learning
Community Meetings, annually.

•  Ninety percent (90%) of families identified by the Department with infants or young children as
being or suspected of being deaf or hard of hearing are offered and participate in deaf
mentorship airtivities, annually.

Northeast Deaf and Hard of Hearing Services Inc., was selected for this project through a
competitive bid process. A Request for Proposals was posted on the Department of Health and Human
Services' web site from June 22, 2018 through July 24, 2018. The Department received one (1)
proposal. The proposal was reviewed and scored by a team of individuals with program specific
knowledge. The Bid Summary is attached.

As referenced in the Request for Proposals and in Exhibit C-1 of this contract, this Agreement
has the option to extend for up to two (2) additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of
services, available funding, agreement of the parties and approval of the Governor and Council.

Notwithstanding any other provision of the Contract to the contrary, no services shall continue
after June 30, 2019, and the Department shall not be liable for any payments for services provided after
June 30, 2019, unless and until an appropriation for these services has been received from the state
legislature and funds encumbered for the SPY 2020-2021.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request, families will not receive
the opportunity to connect with a deaf mentor to provide peer to peer experiential support, help develop
a better understanding of the supports needed for the hearing loss, and support on communication
methods. This may ultimately impact the infant's ability to learn language and meet developmental or
educational milestones.

Area served: Statewide
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Source of Funds:^100% Federal Funds from US DHHS, Human Resources & Services
Administration, Universal Newborn Hearing Screening and Intervention Program. CFDA#93.25,
FAIN#H61MC00034

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds, will not be
requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

rev (Meyers

Commissioner

The Department of Health and Human Services' Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.



Educational Resources and Deaf

Mentorship Activities
RFP Name

RFP-2019-DPHS-14-EDUCA

RFP Number

1.

Bidder Name

Northeast Deaf & Hard of Hearing Services, Inc.

Maximum

Points

Actual

Points

400 285

Reviewer Names

Courtney Keane. Program
^ • Coordinator, Matemal & Chid HIth

2.

3.

4.

Trinidad Tellez, Sysytem
Specialist, Minority Health

Joan Marcoux; HearingrSpeech &
Vision Specialist

Liz Collins, Div Dev Srvcs,

Administrator III

Ellen Chase-Lucard, Financial

Admin, DPHS

c Amy Berquist, Financial
■ Administrator II, DPHS



FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 5/8/15)

Subject: RFP-20I9-DPHS-14-EDUCA Educational Resources and Deaf Mentorship Program

Notice: This agreement and all of its attachments shall become public upon submission to Governor and
Executive Council for approval. Any information that is private, confidential or proprietary must
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

AGREEMENT

The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. IDENTIFICATION.

1.1 State Agency Name
NH Department of Health and Human Services

1.2 State Agency Address
129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301-3857

1.3 Contractor Name

Northeast Deaf and Hard of Hearing Services, Inc.
1.4 Contractor Address

56 Old Suncook Rd

Concord, NH 03301

1.5 Contractor Phone

Number

(603)224-1850

1.6 Account Number

05-95-902010-3387-102-

500731

1.7 Completion Date

03/31/2020

1.8 Price Limitation

$97,500

1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency
Nathan D. White

Director of Contracts and Procurement

1.10 State Agency Telephone Number
603-271-9631

. 11 Contractor Signature 1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory

ffrHer
1.13 Acknowledgement: State of n) of

On before the undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified in block 1.12, or satisfactorily
proven to be the person whose name Is signed In block 1.11, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the capacity
indicated in block 1.12.
1.13.1 Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

rSeall
1.13.2 Name and Title ^Justice of the Peace /f ^ t ^

i;/Mc...To..youvUAT7-
.14 SUbte Agency^gnature

Date: 11 ̂

1.15 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory

1.16 Approval by the iCHTTJepartment of Administration, Division of Personnel (ifapplicable)

By: Director, On:

17 Approval hy the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution) (ifapplicable)

a/ ^
,18 Approval by the Governor and Executiv^Cd^ncil (ifapplfqable)

By: I; / On:
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2. EM PLOYM ENT OF CONTRACTOR/SERVICES TO

BE PERFORMED. The State of New Hampshire, acting
through the agency identified in block I.I ("State")« engages
contractor identified in block 1.3 ("Contractor") to perform,
and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or
both, identified and more particularly described in the attached
EXHIBIT A which is incorporated herein by reference
("Services").

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.

3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if
applicable, this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties
hereunder, shall become effective on the date the Governor
and Executive Council approve this Agreement as indicated in
block 1.18, unless no such approval is required, in which case
the Agreement shall become effective on the date the
Agreement Is signed by the State Agency as shown in block
1.14 ("Effective Date").
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior
to the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not
become effective, the State shall have no liability to the
Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation
of funds, and in no event shall the State be liable for any
payments hereunder in excess of such available appropriated
funds. In the event of a reduction or termination of

appropriated funds, the State shall have the right to withhold
payment until such funds become available, if ever, and shall
have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such termination. The State
shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in that

Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/

PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of
payment are identified and more particularly described in
EXHIBIT B which is incorporated herein by reference.
5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State
shall have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract
price.
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5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement
those liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA
80:7 through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.
5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in
no event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually
made hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block
1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS

AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all statutes, laws, regulations,
and orders of federal, state, county or municipal authorities
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor,
including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal opportunity
laws. This may include the requirement to utilize auxiliary
aids and services to ensure that persons with communication
disabilities, including vision, hearing and speech, can
communicate with, receive information from, and convey
information to the Contractor. In addition, the Contractor
shall comply with all applicable copyright laws.
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall
not discriminate against employees or applicants for
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex,
handicap, sexual orientation, or national origin and will take
affirmative action to prevent such discrimination.
6.3 If this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the
United States, the Contractor shall comply with all the
provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 ("Equal
Employment Opportunity"), as supplemented by the
regulations of the United States Department of Labor (41
C.F.R. Part 60), and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
as the State of New Hampshire or the United States issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor fluther agrees to
permit the State or United States access to any of the
Contractor's books, records and accounts for the purpose of
ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations and orders,
and the covenants, terms and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all
personnel necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor
warrants that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified to perform the Services, and shall be properly
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable
laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire,
and shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State
employee or official, who is materially involved in the
procurement, administration or performance of this
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Agreement. This provision shall survive termination of this
Agreement.
7.3 The Contracting Officer specified In block 1.9, or his or
her successor, shall be the State's representative. In the event
of any dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement,
the Contracting Officer's decision shall be final for the State.

8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder

("Event of Default"):
8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;

8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition
of this Agreement.
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State
may take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and requiring It to be remedied within, in the
absence of a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30)
days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is
not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two
(2) days afler giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default

shall never be paid to the Contractor;
8.2.3 set off against any other obligations the State may owe to
the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or
8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of Its
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITV/

PRESERVATION.

9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word "data" shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,
graphic representations, computer programs, computer
printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, papers, and documents,
all whether finished or unfinished.

9.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon
termination of this Agreement for any reason.
9.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91 -A or other existing law. Disclosure of data
requires prior written approval of the State.
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10. TERMINATION. In the event of an early termination of
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting
Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date of
termination, a report ('Termination Report") describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject
matter, content, and number of copies of the Termination
Report shall be identical to those of any Final Report
described in the attached EXHIBIT A.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In

the performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all
respects an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor
an employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers' compensation
or other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.

The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written notice and
consent of the State. None of the Services shall be

subcontracted by the Contractor without the prior written
notice and consent of the State.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall defend,
indemnify and hold harmless the State, Its officers and
employees, from and against any and all losses suffered by the
State, its officers and employees, and any and all claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted against the State, its officers
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of,
based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
claimed to arise out of) the acts or omissions of the
Contractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the

sovereign immunity of the State, which Immunity is hereby
reserved to the State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive the termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or
assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability Insurance against all
claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts
of not less than $l,000,000per occurrence and $2,000,000
aggregate; and
14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all
property subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
less than 80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described In subparagraph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the
State of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of
Insurance, and issued by insurers licensed in the State of New
Hampshire.
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14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a cenificate(s)
of insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified In block 1.9, or his or her successor, certlficate(s) of
insurance for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this
Agreement no later than thirty (30) days prior to the expiration
date of each of the insurance policies. The certificate(s) of
Insurance and any renewals thereof shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. Each certificate(s) of
insurance shall contain a clause requiring the insurer to
provide the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, no less than thirty (30) days prior written
notice of cancellation or modification of the policy.

15. WORKERS'COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees,
certifies and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with
or exempt from, the requirements ofN.H. RSA chapter 281-A
(" Workers' Compensation ").
15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the
requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of Workers' Compensation in
connection with activities which the person proposes to
undertake pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor shall
furnish the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, proof of Workers' Compensation in the
manner described in N.H. RSA chapter 281-A and any
applicable renewal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. The State shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers' Compensation
premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Contractor, or
any subcontractor or employee of Contractor, which might
arise under applicable State of New Hampshire Workers'
Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the
Services under this Agreement.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the State to
enforce any provisions hereof after any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default. No express
failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Default
on the part of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the
time of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
States Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed
by the parties hereto and only after approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire unless no

such approval is required under the circumstances pursuant to
State law, rule or policy.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.

This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement
is the wording chosen by the parties to express their mutual
intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or
in favor of any party.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement
are for reference purposes only, and the words contained
therein shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or
aid in the interpretation, construction or meaning of the
provisions of this Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set
forth in the attached EXHIBIT C are incorporated herein by
reference.

23. SEVERABILITV. In the event any of the provisions of
this Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to
be contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining
provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and
effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may
be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
Agreements and understandings relating hereto.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Educational Resouces and Deaf Mentorship Activities Contract

Exhibit A

1.

2.

Scope of Services

Provisions Applicable to All Services
1.1. The Contractor shall submit a detailed description of the language assistance

services they will provide to persons with limited English proficiency to ensure
meaningful access to their programs and/or services within ten (10) days of the

contract effective date.

1.2. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New

Hampshire General Court or federal or state court orders may have an impact on
the Services described herein, the State Agency has the right to modify Service

priorities and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve

compliance therewith.

1.3. For the purposes of this contract, the Contractor shall be identified as a subrecipient

in accordance with 2 CFR 200.0. et seq.

Scope of Work
2.1. The Contractor shall provide educational resources and deaf mentorship activities to

families with an infant or young child who has a suspected or confirmed hearing loss

in order to improve language development for their infant and child.

2.2. The Contractor shall provide services to families identified by the Department with

an infant or young child, birth to age three who:

2.2.1.1. Does not pass the newborn hearing screening

2.2.1.2. Is deaf or hard of hearing

2.2.1.3. Is at risk for having hearing loss.

2.3. The Contractor shall develop educational materials for the Department's Early

Hearing Detection and Intervention (EHDI) Program to distribute to newly identified

families who have infant or young child that would benefit from early intervention to

prevent a delay in the development of language.

2.3.1. Educational material shall include the following content/ information about but

not limited to:

2.3.1.1. Hearing loss such as but not limited to:

2.3.1.1.1. Impact on communication

2.3.1.1.2. Language Development

2.3.1.2. Communication modalities such as but not limited to:

2.3.1.2.1.

2.3.1.2.2.

2.3.1.2.3.

Northeast Deaf and Hard of Hearing Services, Inc.

RFP -2019-DPHS-14-EDUCA

Listening and spoken language

Sign language

Cued speech

Exhibit A
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Educational Resouces and Deaf Mentorship Activities Contract

Exhibit A

2.3.1.2.4. Bilingual bimodal

2.3.1.3. Deaf culture such as but not limited to;

2.3.1.3.1. Deaf community

2.3.1.3.2. Educational Impact

2.3.1.3.3. Options and decision making

2.3.1.4. Educational materials would include but not be limited to:

2.3.1.4.1. Fact sheets

2.3.1.4.2. Flyers

2.3.1.4.3. Brochures

2.3.1.4.4. Video

2.3.1.4.5. Department approved social media

2.3.1.5. The Contractor shall distribute educational materials approved by
the Department.

2.3.1.6. The Contractor shall update educational materials as directed by
the Department annually thereafter.

2.3.1.7. The Contractor shall update the 2007 Family Resource Book with
content provided by the Department and provide at least twenty
five (25) copies of the updated Family Resource Books within the
first six months of the contract and then update the Family
Resource Book as directed by the Department annually thereafter.
(See Appendix G - Family Resource Book)

2.3.1.8. The Contractor shall provide the Department with an electronic
version of the Family Resource Book.

2.3.1.9. The Contractor shall update the electronic Family Resource Book
as directed by the Department thereafter.

2.3.1.10. The Contractor agrees to not publish versions of the Resource
Book on any online networks however may publish hyperlink to
Departments webpage where booklet will be published and
updated per the Department.

2.3.1.11. Deaf mentors activities shall include but not limited to:

2.3.1.11.1. Providing supportive interactions by communicating

with families in a positive manner to help build

relationships with families that will support them in

the decisions they have made to help their infant or

young child with communication development and

to cope with managing the emotional stress.

Northeast Deaf and Hard of Hearing Services, Inc. Exhibit A Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Educational Resouces and Deaf Mentorship Activities Contract

Exhibit A

2.3.1.11.2. Providing their own experiences regarding
communication tools, types and methods to families
who recently learned that their child may be
suspected of having a hearing loss.

2.3.1.11.3. Working with the family to develop an
understanding of the types of supports they might
need and determine the frequency of visits.

2.3.1.11.4. Working with the family utilizing lessons from the
SKI-HI Deaf Mentor Curriculum.

2.3.1.11.5. Providing peer to peer experiential support to
families in by providing resources, information and
guidance for parents in making decisions on types
of language and communication options that might
work best with their infant or child.

2.3.1.11.6. Providing families with options to access deaf
mentors statewide including but not limited to:

2.3.1.11.6.1. Tele-communication

2.3.1.11.6.2. Home visits

2.3.1.11.6.3. Community based

2.3.1.11.7. Supporting family's decisions on communication
method(s) chosen and provide unbiased
information and resources on the family's chosen
communication method

2.3.1.11.8. Working with families weekly for sixty (60) to ninety
(90) minutes per session.

2.3.1.12. The Contractor shall contact the Department at least once (1) a
month for referrals for deaf mentorship supports for infants
identified as deaf or hard of hearing.

2.3.1.13. The Contractor shall publicize the program to businesses and
organization such as but not limited to:

2.3.1.13.1. Audiologists

2.3.1.13.2. FCESS

2.3.1.13.3. New Hampshire Hands and Voices

2.3.1.13.4. Pediatrician offices

Northeast Deaf and Hard of Hearing Services, Inc. Exhibit A Contractor initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Educational Resouces and Deaf Mentorship Activities Contract

Exhibit A

2.3.1.14. The Contractor shall provide Information to audiologists and
early intervention providers about deaf mentorship program and
activities.

2.3.1.15. The Contractor shall participate in the Department's EHDI
Quality Improvement (01) Committee and Learning Community
Meetings that meet at least three (3) times a year and in the
Department's quality Improvement initiatives as directed by the
Department.

3. Staff and Training

3.1. The Contractor shall employ deaf mentor(s) who shall have:

3.1.1. A bachelor's degree in education or a related field, and four years'
professional or paraprofessional experience providing education, sharing
resources and supporting families. Each additional year of approved work
experience may be substituted for one year of required formal education.

3.1.2. Fluent in American Sign Language and written English. When contacting a

family whose usual language is not English, use of qualified interpreters is
expected and required.

3.1.3. Experience with children ages birth to three.

3.1.4. Experience in deaf culture.

3.1.5. Sensitivity when addressing complex cultural, emotional and financial Issues
with families.

3.1.6. An understanding of the impact of a child with hearing loss.

3.1.7. Training for all staff in confidentiality of information and records pursuant to all

state rules and state and federal laws, including but not limited to HIPAA, and

42 CFR Part 2.

3.2. New Hires

3.2.1. The Contractor shall notify the Department in writing within one month of hire
when a new administrator, clinical coordinator, or any staff person essential

to carrying out contracted services is hired to work in the program. A resume
of the employee shall accompany the aforesaid notification.

3.3. Vacancies

3.3.1. The Contractor shall notify the Department in writing if any critical position is
vacant for more than one month, or there is not have adequate staffing to

perform all required services for more than one month.

3.3.2. The Contractor shall prior to hiring new program personnel that do not meet

the required staff qualifications, notify the Department in writing requesting a

Northeast Deaf and Hard of Hearing Sen/ices, Inc. Exhibit A Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Educational Resouces and Deaf Mentorshlp Activities Contract

Exhibit A

waiver of the applicable staffing requirements. The Section may grant

waivers based on the need of the program, individuals' experience, and

additional training.

4. Training

4.1. The Contractor shall ensure a maximum of fifteen (15) deaf mentors attend a three

(3) day training provided by SKI-HI Deaf Mentoring Program.

4.2. The Contractor shall ensure that deaf mentors attend meetings and trainings

required by the Department.

4.3. The Contractor shall ensure that deaf mentors complete a training program using

the deaf curriculum from the SKI-HI or comparable training program within the first

year of the contract. Provide proof that the training was completed.

4.4. The Contractor shall maintain confidentiality of all data, and maintain nightly backup

discs for all data collected and archive offsite as appropriate.

5. Reporting

5.1. The Contractor shall ensure that any client data included in any report will be de-

identified and in aggregate format as required by all state rules, and state and

federal law.

5.2. The Contractor shall have contracts in place with any contractor or subcontract that

includes as a requirement of that contract that the contractor or subcontractor

ensure through policy and procedures that any client data included in any report will

be de-identified and in aggregate format as required by all state rule and state and

federal law, and will not be re-disclosed without express consent of the family or as

allowed by state rules, or state and federal law.

5.3. The Contractor shall provide annually (April through March) a report to the

Department no later than ninety (90) days following the end of the year by
reporting on their work plan utilizing the Department's template which shall include,

but not be limited to;

5.3.1. Progress of program activities.

5.3.2. Educational Materials developed.

5.3.3. Brief narrative identifying barriers experienced by the vendor.

5.3.4. Plan to address identified barriers.

5.4. The Contractor shall annually submit an updated work plan identifying how

performance measures will be achieved.

5.5. The Contractor shall report the number of Vendor's staff and type of training the

staff attended.

Northeast Deaf and Hard of Hearing Services, Inc. Exhibit a Contractor Initials iAP
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Exhibit A

6. Performance Measures

6.1. Ninety percent (90%) of families Identified by the Department with Infants or young
children as being or suspected of being deaf or hard of hearing are offered and

participate in deaf mentorship activities, annually.

6.1.1. Goal: Families were offered and provided documentation about deaf

mentorship activities.

6.1.1.1. Definition

6.1.1.1.1. Numerator: The number of families who were offered and

participated in deaf mentorship activities.

6.1.1.1.2. Denominator; The number of families whose infant was

diagnosed with a hearing loss within the past 12 months.

6.1.1.1.3. Data Source: contractor aggregate records that track the

scope of work, and Department's EHDI Program Data

System

6.1.2. Goal: Ensure the deaf mentor attends and provides input during EHDI

Program Quality Improvement meetings and learning community meetings.

6.1.2.1. Definition:

6.1.2.1.1. Numerator: The number of scheduled EHDI Program

Quality improvement meetings and learning community

meetings held within the last 12 months that the family

organization participated in.

6.1.2.1.2. Denominator: The number of d EHDI Program Quality
Improvement meetings and learning community meetings
held within the last 12 months.

6.1.2.1.3. Data Source: Contractor Records that track this work.

6.1.3. Attend hundred percent (100%) of the Department's Quality Improvement

and Learning Community Meetings, annually.

7. Deliverables

7.1. Contractor shall provide the Department copies of certificate of completion from all

deaf mentors who complete the SKI-HI trainings within thirty (30) days of training

date.

7.2. The Contractor shall provide the Department a SKI-HI training evaluation report

'  within ninety (90) days of the contract completion date. Report shall include but not

limited to:

Northeast Deaf and Hard of Heating Services, Inc. Exhibit A Contractor initials. JM-
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7.2.1. Deaf Mentor SKI-HI training evaluation results

7.2.2. Assessment of completion of tasks and components of the program

7.3. The Contractor shall provide the Department with twenty five (25) updated Family Resource
Books and one (1) electronic format within six (6) months of the contract effective date.

Northeast Deaf and Hard of Hearing Services, Inc. Exhtbil A Contractor initials M
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Educationai Resouces and Deaf Mentorship Activities Contract

Exhibit B

Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment

1) The State shall pay the Contractor an amount not to exceed the Form P-37, Block 1.8, Price
Limitation for the services provided by the Contractor pursuant to Exhibit A, Scope of Services.

1.1. This Agreement is funded with funds from the Health Resources and Service Administration
(HRSA), Universal Newborn Hearing Screening Program, CFDA #93.251, Federal Award
Identification Number 6 H61MC00034-18-2.

1.2. The Contractor agrees to provide the services in Exhibit A, Scope of Service in compliance
with funding requirements. Failure to meet the scope of sen/ices may jeopardize the funded
Contractor's current and/or future funding.

2) Payment for said services shall be made monthly as follows:

2.1. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred in the
fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with Exhibit B-1, Budget Sheet and
Exhibit 8-2, Budget Sheet.

2.2. The Contractor will submit an invoice in a form satisfactory to the State by the twentieth
working day of each month, which identifies and requests reimbursement for authorized
expenses incurred in the prior month. The invoice must be completed, signed, dated and
returned to the Department in order to initiate payment. The Contractor agrees to keep
records of their activities related to Department programs and services.

2.3. The State shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt of each
invoice, subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice and if sufficient funds are available.
The Contractor will keep detailed records of their activities related to DHHS-funded programs
and services.

2.4. The final invoice shall be due to the State no later than forty (40) days after the contract Form
P-37, Block 1.7 Completion Date.

2.5. In lieu of hard copies, ail invoices may be assigned an electronic signature and emailed to
DPHScontractbillina@dhhs.nh.qov:

Financial Administrator

Department of Health and Human Services
Division of Public Health Sen/ices

29 Hazen Drive

Concord, NH 03301

2.6. Payments may be withheld pending receipt of required reports or documentation as identified
in Exhibit A, Scope of Services and in this Exhibit B.

3) The Contractor shall submit expenditure details of any invoices upon Department request.

4) Notwithstanding paragraph 18 of the General Provisions P-37, changes limited to adjusting
encumbrances between State Fiscal Years, may be made by written agreement of both parties
and may be made without obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council.

Northeast Deaf and Hard of Hearing Services, Inc. Exhibit B Contractor Initials tkh
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Appendix B-1 • Budget Sheet

Department of Health and Human Services

Bidder/Program Name:

Budget Request For:

Northeast Deaf and Hard of Hearing Services, inc.

RFP-2019-OPHS-14-EDUCA

48,750.00 S 48,750.00

Budget Period: January 1. 2019 thru June 30. 2019

(Year 1)

ED 2X/Coord 33.5X/Acct 2.175X/AA iX/lntern lOX

1 J, ■ v"'"v Total Program Cost "i •  •■. 'r--"'."ContractorShare/Match -. j' ,- Funded by DHHS Contract Share
Direct Direct Direct

Line Item Incremental Indirect Rxed Total Incremental Indirect Fixed Total Incremental Indirect Fixed Total

ll. Total Salary/Wages S 18,255.50 $ s 18,255.50 $ S s S 18,255.50 S s 18,255.50
2. Employee Benefits S 1,710.34 S s 1,710.34 S S s s 1,710.34 S $ 1,710.34
3. Consultants: Train Mentors S 7,500.00 S $ 7,500.00 S S $ s 7,500.00 S s 7,500.00

Consultants: Mentors $ 1,800.00 s $ 1,800.00 s S s $ 1,800.00 s s 1,800.00
Consultants: Manual Review s 3,200.00 s s 3,200.00 s s $ s 3,200.00 s s 3,200.00

4. Equipment s s s $ s s $ s s
Rental $ 60.00 s s 60.00 s s s s 60.00 s s 60.00
Repair 8i Maintenance s $ s s s $ s s $
Purchase/Depreciation s s s $ s s s s s

5. Supplies s s s s S $ s $ s
Educational $ 2,000.00 s s 2,000.00 $ s s $ 2,000.00 s s 2,000.00
Lab $ s s s $ s s $ s
Pharmacy s s s s s s s s s
Medical s s s $ s s $ s s
Office $ 265.00 s s 265.00 $ s $ $ 265.00 s s 265.00

6. Travel (Staff 8( Mentors) s 6,850.00 s s 6,850.00 s S s s 6,850.00 s s 6,850.00
7. Occupancy s 1,964.16 $ s 1,964.16 s S s s 1,964.16 s s 1,964.16
8. Current Expenses s $ s s s s s s S

Telephone s 180.00 s s 180.00 s s s s 180.00 s s 180.00
Postage s 140.00 s s 140.00 s s s s 140.00 $ s 140.00
Subscriptions s s $ s s s s s s
Audit 8i Legal s 50.00 s s 50.00 s s s s 50.00 s $ 50.00
insurance s 200.00 s s 200.00 $ s s $ 200.00 s s 200.00
DHHS Board Expenses s $ s $ s s s s s

9. Software s $ s s s s $ s $
10. Marketing/Communications s 450.00 s s 450.00 s $ $ s 450.00 s s 450.00
11. Staff Education &Training $ $ s s s s s s s
12. Subcontracts/Agreements s s s s s s s s s
13. Other $ s s s s s s s s

Access Communication s 2,500.00 $ $ 2,500.00 s s s s 2,500.00 s s 2,500.00
Stakeholder Mtg s 1,500.00 s s 1,500.00 s s s s 1,500.00 s s 1,500.00
Family Resource Eiook s 125.00 s s 125.00 $ s s s 125.00 s s 125.00

s $ s s s s $ s s

1 s s s - s s s s s s
-

frOTAL s 48,750.00 s s 48,750.00 D

C:\Mike\Mike's Files\Deaf\NDHKS\NOHHS G«nera^02 DHHS Budget Form for Submission 12-7-2018.xisx. Year 1
RFP • 2019-DPHS-14-E0UCA
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Appendix B-2 • Budget Sheet

Department of Health and Human Services

Bidder/Program Name:

Budget Request For:

Northeast Deaf and Hard of Hearing Services, Inc.

RFP-2019-DPHS-14-EDUCA

48,750.00 S 48,750.00

Budget Period: Jufv 1. 2019 thru March 31. 2020

(Year 2)

ED 2X/Coord 33.6%/Aca 2.175X/AA 1%/lntern lOX

1 TotarProRram Cost-.- ; -  '• .Contractorshare/Match /.r Funded by DHHS Contract Share

'w - Direct Direct Direct

Line Item Incremental Indirect Fixed Total Incremental Indirect Fbced Total Incremental Indirect Fixed Total

;

1. Total Salary / Wages S 18,201.04 S s 18,201.04 $ S $ S 18,201.04 s s 18,201.04

2. Employee Elenefits S 1,834.80 S s 1,834.80 S $ s s 1,834.80 s s 1,834.80

3. Consultants: Train the Trainer S 750.00 s s 750.00 S $ s s 750.00 s s 750.00

Consultants: Mentors s 8,000.00 s s 8,000.00 s s s s 8,000.00 s $ 8,000.00

Consultants: Manual Review s 1,250.00 s s 1,250.00 $ s s s 1,250.00 s s 1,250.00

4. Equipment $ s s s $  . s $ s s

Rental s 60.00 s $ 60.00 s s $ s 60.00 s s 60.00

1  Repair & Maintenance s s s s s $ $ s s
1  Purchase/Depreciation $ s s s s s $ s s
Is. Supplies s s s s s s s s s

Educational s 2,000.00 s s 2,000.00 s s s s 2,000.00 s s 2,000.00

Lab s s s 5 s s s s s

Pharmacy s s s S s s s s s

Medical s 5 $ S s s s s s

Office s 300.00 $ s 300.00 S s s s 300.00 s s 300.00

Is. Travel (Staff 8i Mentors) s 9,350.00 s s 9,350.00 s s s s 9,350.00 s s 9,350.00

1|7. Occupancy $ 1,964.16 s s 1,964.16 s s $ s 1,964.16 s s 1,964.16

Is. Current Expenses s s s s s s $ s s
Telephone' s 200.00 s s 200.00 s s s s 200.00 s s 200.00

Postage s 140.00 s s 140.00 s s s s 140.00 s s 140.00

Subscriptions s s s s s s s s s
Audit 8i Legal s 50.00 s s 50.00 s s s s 50.00 s s 50.00

Insurance s 200.00 s $ 200.00 s s s s 200.00 s s 200.00

DHHS Board Expenses $ s s $ s s $ s s

9. Software s s $ s s $ s s s

10. Marketing/Communications s 450.00 s s 450.00 $ s s s 450.00 s s 450.00

11. Staff Education & Training s s s s s s $ s s

12. Subcontracts/Agreements s s s s s s s s s
13. Other s $ s s s s $ 5 s

Access Communication s 2,500.00 s s 2,500.00 s s s s 2,500.00 s s 2,500.00

Stakeholder Mtg •$ 1,500.00 s $ 1,500.00 s s s s 1,500.00 s s 1,500.00

s s s s s s s s s

s s s - $ s s s s s
-

TOTAL s 48,750.00 s s 48,750.00 1

C;\Mike\Mike'$ File»\Oeaf\NOHHS\NOHHS Genefa^02 OHHS Budget Form for Submission 12-7-2018.idsx, Year 2
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

Contractors Obligations; The Contractor covenants and agrees that all funds received by the Contractor
under the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to eligible
individuals and, in the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees as follows:

1. Compliance with Federal and State Laws: if the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility
of individuals such eligibility determination shall be made in accordance with applicable federal and
state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures.

2. Time and Manner of Determination: Eligibility determinations shall be made on forms provided by
the Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such times as are prescribed by
the Department.

3. Documentation: In addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the Contractor
shall maintain a data file on each recipient of sen/ices hereunder, which file shall include all
information necessary to support an eligibility determination and such other information as the
Department requests. The Contractor shall furnish the Department with all forms and documentation
regarding eligibility determinations that the Department may request or require.

4. Fair Hearings: The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder, as well as
individuals declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding that determination. The
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that all applicants for services shall be permitted to fill out
an application form and that each applicant or re-applicant shall be informed of his/her right to a fair
hearing in accordance with Department regulations.

5. Gratuities or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees that it is a breach of this Contract to accept or
make a payment, gratuity or offer of employment on behalf of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or
the State in order to influence the performance of the Scope of Work detailed in Exhibit A of this
Contract. The State may terminate this Contract and any sub-contract or sub-agreement if it is
determined that payments, gratuities or offers of employment of any kind were offered or received by
any officials, officers, employees or agents of the Contractor or Sut}-Contractor.

6. Retroactive Payments: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract or in any
other document, contract or understanding, it is expressly understood and agreed by the parties
hereto, that no payments will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs incurred for
any purpose or for any services provided to any individual prior to the Effective Date of the Contract
and no payments shall be made for expenses Incurred by the Contractor for any services provided
prior to the date on which the individual applies for services or (except as otherwise provided by the
federal regulations) prior to a determination that the individual is eligible for such sen/ices.

7. Conditions of Purchase: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract, nothing
herein contained shall be deemed to obligate or require the Department to purchase services
hereunder at a rate which reimburses the Contractor in excess of the Contractors costs, at a rate
which exceeds the amounts reasonable and necessary to assure the quality of such service, or at a
rate which exceeds the rate charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals or other third party
funders for such sen/ice. If at any time during the term of this Contract or after receipt of the Final
Expenditure Report hereunder, the Department shall determine that the Contractor has used
payments hereunder to reimburse items of expense other than such costs, or has received payment
in excess of such costs or in excess of such rates charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals
or other third party funders, the Department may elect to:
7.1. Renegotiate the rates for payment hereunder, in which event new rates shall be established;
7.2. Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursement in

excess of costs;

Exhibit C - Special Provisions Contractor Initiais
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C

7.3. Demand repayment of the excess payment by the Contractor in which event failure to make
such repayment shall constitute an Event of Default hereunder. When the Contractor is
permitted to determine the eligibility of individuals for services, the Contractor agrees to
reimburse the Department for all funds paid by the Department to the Contractor for services
provided to any individual who is found by the Department to be ineligible for such services at
any time during the period of retention of records established herein.

RECORDS; MAINTENANCE, RETENTION, AUDIT. DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY;

8. Maintenance of Records: In addition to the eligibility records specified above, the Contractor
covenants and agrees to maintain the following records during the Contract Period;
8.1. Fiscal Records; books, records, documents and other data evidencing and reflecting all costs

and other expenses incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all
income received or collected by the Contractor during the Contract Period, said records to be
maintained in accordance with accounting procedures and practices which sufficiently and
properly reflect all such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original evidence of costs such as
purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of
in-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by the
Department.

8.2. Statistical Records: Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services during the Contract Period, which records shall include all records of application and
eligibility (including all forms required to determine eligibility for each such recipient), records
regarding the provision of sen/ices and all invoices submitted to the Department to obtain
payment for such services.

8.3. Medical Records; Where appropriate and as prescribed by the Department regulations, the
Contractor shall retain medical records on each patient/recipient of services.

9. Audit: Contractor shall submit an annual audit to the Department within 60 days after the close of the
agency fiscal year. It is recommended that the report be prepared in accordance with the provision of
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, "Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non
Profit Organizations" and the provisions of Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations,
Programs, Activities and Functions, issued by the US General Accounting Office (GAO standards) as
they pertain to financial compliance audits.
9.1. Audit and Review: During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder, the

Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and any of their
designated representatives shall have access to all reports and records maintained pursuant to
the Contract for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts.

9.2. Audit Liabilities: In addition to and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, it is
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for any state
or federal audit exceptions and shall return to the Department, all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken or which have been disallowed because of such an
exception.

10. Confidentiality of Records: All information, reports, and records maintained hereunder or collected
in connection with the performance of the services and the Contract shall be confidential and shall not
be disclosed by the Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to state laws and the regulations of
the Department regarding the use and disclosure of such information, disclosure may be made to
public officials requiring such information in connection with their official duties and for purposes
directly connected to the administration of the services and the Contract; and provided further, that
the use or disclosure by any party of any information conceming a recipient for any purpose not
directly connected virith the administration of the Department or the Contractor's responsibilities with
resped to purchased services hereunder is prohibited except on written consent of the recipient, his
attorney or guardian.

Exhibit C - Special Provisions Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein the covenants and conditions contained in
the Paragraph shall survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

11. Reports: Fiscal and Statistical; The Contractor agrees to submit the following reports at the following
times if requested by the Department.
11.1. Interim Financial Reports: Written interim financial reports containing a detailed description of

all costs and non-allowable expenses incurred by the Contractor to the date of the report and
containing such other information as shall be deemed satisfactory by the Department to
justify the rate of payment hereunder. Such Financial Reports shall be submitted on the form
designated by the Department or deemed satisfactory by the Department.

11.2. Final Report: A final report shall be submitted within thirty (30) days after the end of the term
of this Contract. The Final Report shall be in a form satisfactory to the Department and shall
contain a summary statement of progress toward goals and objectives stated in the Proposal
and other information required by the Department.

12. Completion of Services: Disallowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of the price limitation
hereunder, the Contract and all the obligations of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as,
by the terms of the Contract are to be performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or
survive the termination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that if, upon review of the
Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as
costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

13. Credits: All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other materials prepared
during or resulting from the performance of the services of the Contract shall include the following
statement:

13.1. The preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract with the State
of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services, with funds provided in part
by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human Services.

14. Prior Approval and Copyright Ownership: All materials (written, video, audio) produced or
purchased under the contract shall have prior approval from DHHS before printing, production,
distribution or use. The DHHS will retain copyright ownership for any and all original materials
produced, including, but not limited to, brochures, resource directories, protocols or guidelines,
posters, or reports. Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the contract without
prior written approval from DHHS.

15. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations: In the operation of any facilities
for providing services, the Contractor shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal,
state, county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers
pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or duty upon the contractor with respect to the
operation of the facility or the provision of the services at such facility. If any govemmental license or
permit shall be required for the operation of the said facility or the performance of the said sen/ices,
the Contractor will procure said license or permit, and will at all times comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the foregoing requirements, the
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Contract the facilities shall
comply with all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the Fire Marshal and
the local fire protection agency, and shall be in conformance with local building and zoning codes, by
laws and regulations.

16. Equal Employment Opportunity Plan (EEOP): The Contractor will provide an Equal Employment
Opportunity Plan (EEOP) to the Office for Civil Rights, Office of Justice Programs (OCR), if it has
received a single award of $500,000 or more. If the recipient receives $25,000 or more and has 50 or
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Exhibit C

more employees, it will maintain a current EEOP on file and submit an EEOP Certification Form to the
OCR, certifying that its EEOP is on file. For recipients receiving less than $25,000, or public grantees
with fewer than 50 employees, regardless of the amount of the award, the recipient will provide an
EEOP Certification Form to the OCR certifying it is not required to submit or maintain an EEOP. Non
profit organizations, Indian Tribes, and medical and educational institutions are exempt from the
EEOP requirement, but are required to submit a certification form to the OCR to claim the exemption.
EEOP Certification Forms are available at; http://www.ojp.usdoj/about/ocr/pdfs/cert.pdf.

17. Limited English Proficiency (LEP): As clarified by Executive Order 13166, Improving Access to
Services for persons with Limited English Proficiency, and resulting agency guidance, national origin
discrimination includes discrimination on the basis of limited English proficiency (LEP). To ensure
compliance with the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 and Title VI of the Civil
Rights Act of 1964, Contractors must take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have
meaningful access to its programs.

18. Pilot Program for Enhancement of Contractor Employee Whistleblower Protections: The
following shall apply to all contracts that exceed the Simplified Acquisition Threshold as defined in 48
CFR 2.101 (currently, $150,000)

Contractor Employee Whistleblower Rights and Requirement To Inform Employees of

Whistleblower Rights (SEP 2013)

(a) This contract and employees working on this contract will be subject to the whistleblower rights
and remedies in the pilot program on Contractor employee whistleblower protections established at
41 U.S.C. 4712 by section 828 of the National Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L.
112-239) and FAR 3.908.

(b) The Contractor shall inform its employees in writing, in the predominant language of the workforce,
of employee whistleblower rights and protections under 41 U.S.C. 4712, as described in section
3.908 of the Federal Acquisition Regulation.

(c) The Contractor shall insert the substance of this clause, including this paragraph (c), in all
subcontracts over the simplified acquisition threshold.

19. Subcontractors: DHHS recognizes that the Contractor may choose to use subcontractors with
greater expertise to perform certain health care services or functions for efficiency or convenience,
but the Contractor shall retain the responsibility and accountability for the function(s). Prior to
subcontracting, the Contractor shall evaluate the subcontractor's ability to perform the delegated
function(s). This is accomplished through a written agreement that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities of the subcontractor and provides for revoking the delegation or imposing sanctions if
the subcontractor's performance is not adequate. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual
conditions as the Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor compliance
with those conditions.

When the Contractor delegates a function to a subcontractor, the Contractor shall do the following:
19.1. Evaluate the prospective subcontractor's ability to perform the activities, before delegating

the function

19.2. Have a written agreement with the subcontractor that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities and how sanctions/revocation will be managed if the subcontractor's
performance is not adequate

19.3. Monitor the subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis

Exhibit C - Special Provisions Contractor initials
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19.4. Provide to DHHS an annual schedule identifying all subcontractors, delegated functions and
responsibilities, and when the subcontractor's performance will be reviewed

19.5. DHHS shall, at its discretion, review and approve all subcontracts.

if the Contractor identifies deficiencies or areas for Improvement are identified, the Contractor shall
take corrective action.

DEFINITIONS

As used in the Contract, the following terms shall have the following meanings;

COSTS: Shall mean those direct and indirect items of expense determined by the Department to be
allowable and reimbursable in accordance with cost and accounting principles established in accordance
with state and federal laws, regulations, rules and orders.

DEPARTMENT: NH Department of Health and Human Services.

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT GUIDELINES: Shall mean that section of the Contractor Manual which is
entitled "Financial Management Guidelines" and which contains the regulations governing the financial
activities of contractor agencies which have contracted with the State of NH to receive funds.

PROPOSAL: If applicable, shall mean the document submitted by the Contractor on a form or forms
required by the Department and containing a description of the Services to be provided to eligible
individuals by the Contractor in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Contract and setting forth
the total cost and sources of revenue for each service to be provided under the Contract.

UNIT: For each service that the Contractor is to provide to eligible individuals hereunder, shall mean that
period of time or that specified activity determined by the Department and specified in Exhibit B of the
Contract.

FEDERAL/STATE LAW: Wherever federal or state laws, regulations, rules, orders, and policies, etc. are
referred to in the Contract, the said reference shall be deemed to mean all such laws, regulations, etc. as
they may be amended or revised from the time to time.

CONTRACTOR MANUAL: Shall mean that document prepared by the NH Department of Administrative
Services containing a compilation of ail regulations promulgated pursuant to the New Hampshire
Administrative Procedures Act. NH RSA Ch 541-A, for the purpose of implementing State of NH and
federal regulations promulgated thereunder.

SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: The Contractor guarantees that funds provided under this
Contract will not supplant any existing federal funds available for these services.

Exhibit C - Special Provisions Contractor initials
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New Hampshire Department of Heatth and Human Services
Educational Resouces and Deaf Mentorship Activities Contract

Exhibit C-1

REViSiONS TO GENERAL PROVISiONS

1. Subparagraph 4 of the General Provisions of this contract, Conditional Nature of Agreement, is
replaced as follows:

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the State
hereunder. including without limitation, the continuance of payments, in whole or in part,
under this Agreement are contingent upon continued appropriation or availability of funds,
including any subsequent changes to the appropriation or availability of funds affected by
any state or federal legislative or executive action that reduces, eliminates, or otherwise
mc^ifies the appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and the Scope of
Services provided in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in whole or in part, in no event shall the
State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of appropriated or available funds. In
the event of a reduction, termination or modification of appropriated or available funds, the
State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds become available, if ever. The
State shall have the right to reduce, terminate or modify services under this Agreement
immediately upon giving the Contractor notice of such reduction, termination or modification.
The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other source or account Into the
Account(s) identified in block 1.6 of the General Provisions, Account Number, or any other
account, in the event funds are reduced or unavailable.

2. Subparagraph 10 of the General Provisions of this contract, Termination, is amended by adding the
following language;

10.1 The State may terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole discretion of
the State, 30 days after giving the Contractor written notice that the State is exercising its
option to terminate the Agreement.

10.2 In the event of early termination, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of early
termination, develop and submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the
Agreement, including but not limited to, identi^ng the present and future needs of clients
receiving services under the Agreement and establishes a process to meet those needs.

10.3 The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State and shall promptly provide detailed
Information to support the Transition Plan including, but not limited to, any information or
data requested by the State related to the termination of the Agreement and Transition Plan
and shall provide ongoing communication and revisions of the Transition Plan to the State as
requested.

10.4 In the event that services under the Agreement, including but not limited to clients receiving
services under the Agreement are transitioned to having services delivered by another entity
including contracted providers or the State, the Contractor shall provide a process for
uninterrupted delivery of services in the Transition Plan.

10.5 The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients and other affected individuals
about the transition. The Contractor shall include the proposed communications in its
Transition Plan submitted to the State as described above.

3. Renewal:

The Department reserves the right to e>rtend this Agreement for up to two (2) additional years,
contingent upon satisfactory deliveiy of services, available funding, agreement of the parties and
approval by the Governor and Executive Council.

Northeast Deaf and Hard of Exhibit C-1 - Revisions to Standard Provisions Contractor Initials Ml
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41
U.S.C. 701 et seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification;

ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION • CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31,
1989 regulations were amended and putilished as Part II of the May 25,1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691), and require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub
contractors), prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a State
may elect to make one certification to the Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is a
material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or govemment wide suspension or debarment. Contradors using this form should
send it to:

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street,
Concord, NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:
1.1. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,

dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee's
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition:

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
1.2.2. The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and
1.2.4. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations

occurring in the workplace;
1.3. Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be

given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);
1.4. Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of

employment under the grant, the employee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and
1.4.2. Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction;

1.5. Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant
ofTicer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency

Exhibit D - Certification regardlr>g Drug Free Contractor Initials
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has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
identification number(s) of each affected grant;

1.6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who is so convicted
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including

termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or

1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

1.7. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implementation of paragraphs 1.1,1.2, 1.3, 1.4,1.5, and 1.6.

2. The grantee may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done in
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)

Check □ if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

Contractor Name:

Date ' ^ Name:
Title:

Exhibit D - Certification regarding Drug Free Contractor Initials
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Contractor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as Identified In Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification;

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (Indicate applicable program covered):
*Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
•Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
•Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
•Medicaid Program under Title XIX
'Community Services Block Grant under Title VI
'Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for Influencing or attempting to Influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sub-grantee or sub-contractor).

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub
contractor), the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying, in accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-l.)

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be Included In the award
document for sub-awards at all tiers (Including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification Is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered Into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction Imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who falls to file the required
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for
each such failure.

Contractor Name:

Diti ^ Name:
Title:
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT. SUSPENSION

AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment,
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certification;

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the
certification set out below.

2. The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in denial
of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an
explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be
considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services' (DHHS)
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in
this transaction.

3. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government, DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant leams
that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

5. The terms "covered transaction," "debarred," "suspended," "ineligible," "lower tier covered
transaction," "participant," "person." "primary covered transaction," "principal," "proposal," and
"voluntarily excluded," as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See the
attached definitions.

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the
proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lowr tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the
clause titled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion -
Lower Tier Covered Transactions," provided by DHHS, without modification, in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

8. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a
lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each
participant may, but is not required to, check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records
in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and

Exhibit F - Certification Regarding Debarment. Suspension Contractor Initials
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information of a participant is not required to exceed that which Is normally possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government, DHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS

11. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its
principals:
11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;
11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had

a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or local)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

11.3. are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (l)(b)
of this certification; and

11.4. have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.

12. Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS

13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as
defined in 45 CFR Part 76, certiftes to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its principals:
13.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.
13.2. where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such

prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will
include this clause entitled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension. lneligibility, and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions,' without modification in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

Contractor Name:

Name: Mtm-
Title:

Exhibit F - Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension Contractor Initials
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CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO

FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND

WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

Contractor will comply, and will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondiscrimination requirements, which may include:

• the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employment practices or in
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

- the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or in the delivery of services or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements;

- the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d, which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or activity);

- the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794), which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benefits, in any program or activity;

- the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34), which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment. State and local
govemment services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;

- the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681,1683,1685-86), which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

- the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include
employment discrimination;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - OJJDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

-28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); and Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enacted January 2, 2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistleblower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities In connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or
debarment.
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In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions
indicated above.

Contractor Name:

Qat?'^ Name:
Title:
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CERTIFiCATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227. Part C - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 18, if the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through State or local govemments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children's services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
$1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Contractor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification;

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply
with all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part 0, known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.

Contractor Name:

Date Name:
Title:

Exhibit H - Certification Regarding Contractor Initials
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HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILITY ACT

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein, "Business
Associate" shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that
receive, use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement and "Covered
Entity" shall mean the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services.

(1) Definitions.

a. "Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section 164.402 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. "Business Associate" has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45, Code
of Federal Regulations.

c. "Covered Entitv" has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

d. "Designated Record Set" shall have the same meaning as the term "designated record set"
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

e. "Data Aaoreaation" shall have the same meaning as the term "data aggregation" in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

f. "Health Care Operations" shall have the same meaning as the term "health care operations"
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

g. "HITECH Act" means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act, TitleXIII, Subtitle D, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009.

h. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160,162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

i. "Individual" shall have the same meaning as the term "individual" in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(g).

j. "Privacv Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services.

k. "Protected Health Information" shall have the same meaning as the term "protected health
information" in 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to the information created or received by
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity.

3/2014 Exhibit I Contractor Initials
Health Insurance Portability Act
Business Associate Agreement ffJ/^ l/Z
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I. "Required bv Law" shall have the same meaning as the term "required by law" in 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

m. "Secretary" shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or
his/her designee.

n. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments thereto.

0. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means protected health information that is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.

p. Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160,162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the
HITECH

Act.

(2) Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

a. Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further, Business Associate, including but not limited to all
its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI;
I. For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
II. As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
III. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered

Entity.

c. To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party, Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was
disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate, in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy, Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

d. The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Business
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Associate shali refrain from disciosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies.

e. If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shali be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

(3) Obligations and Activities of Business Associate.

a. The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer immediately
after the Business Associate t)ecomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health information not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected health information and/or any security incident that may have an impact on the
protected health information of the Covered Entity.

b. The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but not be
limited to;

o The nature and extent of the protected health information involved, including the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identification;

0  The unauthorized person used the protected health information or to whom the
disclosure was made;

0 Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed
0  The extent to which the risk to the protected health information has been

mitigated.

The Business Associate shali complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entity.

c. The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy, Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.

d. Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

e. Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (I). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor's business associate
agreements with Contractor's intended business associates, who will be receiving PHI
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pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnification from such
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health Information.

f. Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at Its offices all
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate's compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

g. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI In a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

h. Wtthin ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record
Set, the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

i. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to

such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

j. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

k. In the event any individual requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days fonA/ard such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

I. Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or
destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in
the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those
purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible, for so long as Business
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Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its soie discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHi has been destroyed.

(4) Obligations of Covered Entity

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or iimitation(s) in its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520, to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate's
use or disclosure of PHI.

b. Covered Entity shail promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

c. Covered entity shail promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to In accordance with 45 CFR 164.522,
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of
PHI.

(5) Termination for Cause

In addition to.Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P'37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may Immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity, if Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible, Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

(6) Miscellaneous

a. Definitions and Regulatory References. Ail terms used, but not othen/vise defined herein,
shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I, to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as
amended.

b. Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as Is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as Is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes In the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

c. Data Ownershio. The Business Associate acknowledges that It has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d. Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule.
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Segregation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit I or the application thereof to any
person(s) or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit I are declared severable.

Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit I regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or
destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) I, the
defense and indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions (P-37). shall survive the termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I.

-  /

Department of Health and Human Services "^^0 fCeS
Name of the ContractorThe^tat

Signature of AufRbrteetf F^presentative Signature of Authorized Representative

Name of Authorized Representative

^e of Authorized RepresentativeTi

/kic^ Pittef-

Date

Name of Authorized Representative

Title of Authorized Representative

Date
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND TRANSPARENCY

ACT IFFATAl COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1, 2010, to report on
data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the
initial award Is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or over
$25,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.
In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), the
Department of Health and Human Sen/ices (DHHS) must report the following information for any
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:
1. Name of entity
2. Amount of award

3. Funding agency
4. NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
5. Program source
6. Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
7. Location of the entity
8. Principle place of performance
9. Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS #)
10. Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:

10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those
revenues are greater than $25M annually and

10.2. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendment is made.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-252,
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further agrees
to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following Certification:
The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH
Department of Health and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal
Financial Accountability and Transparency Act.

Contractor Name:

Date ' ̂  Name:
Title:""

Exhibit J - Certification Regardlrig the Federal Funding Contractor Initials
Accountability And Transparency Act (FFATA) Compliance /
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FORMA

As the Contractor Identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, I certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

1. The DUNS number for your entity is;

2. In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or
cooperative agreements?

NO YES

If the answer to #2 above is NO, stop here

If the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the following:

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 78o(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
1986?

NO YES

If the answer to #3 above is YES, stop here

If the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

CU/OHHS/110713

Exhibit J - Certification Regarding the Federal Funding
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

A. Definitions

The following terms may be reflected and have the described meaning in this document;

1. "Breach" means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar terrn referring to
situations where persons other than authorized users and for an other than
authorized purpose have access or potential access to personally identifiable
Information, whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health

Information," Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section
164.402 of Title 45, Code of Federal Regulations.

2. "Computer Security Incident" shall have the same meaning "Computer Security
Incident" In section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61, Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U.S. Department
of Commerce.

3. "Confidential Information" or "Confidential Data" means all confidential information

disclosed by one party to the other such as all medical, health, financial, public
assistance benefits and personal information including without limitation, Substance
Abuse Treatment Records. Case Records, Protected Health Information and
Personally Identifiable Information.

Confidential Information also includes any and all information owned or managed by
the State of NH - created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and
Human Services (DHHS) or accessed in the course of performing contracted
services - of which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition is governed by
state or federal law or regulation. This information includes, but is not limited to
Protected Health Information (PHI). Personal Information (PI), Personal Financial
Information (PFI), Federal Tax Information (FTI), Social Security Numbers (SSN),
Payment Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential information.

4. "End User" means any person or entity (e.g., contractor, contractor's employee,
business associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives
DHHS data or derivative data in accordance with the terms of this Contract.

5. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and the
regulations promulgated thereunder.

6. "Incident" means an act that potentially violates an explicit or implied security policy,
which includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
a system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware,
firmware, or software characteristics without the owner's knowledge, instruction, or
consent. Incidents include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss
or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physical or electronic
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mail, all of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized
access, use, disclosure, modification or destruction.

7. "Open Wireless Network" means any network or segment of a network that is
not designated by the State of New Hampshire's Department of Information
Technology or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and
approved, by means of the State, to transmit) will be considered an open
network and not adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted PI. PFI,
PHI or confidential DHHS data.

8. "Personal Information" (or "PI") means information which can be used to distinguish
or trace an individual's identity, such as their name, social security number, personal
information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C:19, biometric records, etc.,
alone, or when combined with other personal or identifying information which is linked
or linkable to a specific individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's maiden
name, etc.

9. "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United
States Department of Health and Human Services.

10. "Protected Health Information" (or "PHI") has the same meaning as provided in the
definition of "Protected Health Information" in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. §
160.103.

11. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protected Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments
thereto.

12. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means Protected Health Information that is

not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is
developed or endorsed by a standards developing organization that is accredited by
the American National Standards Institute.

I. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A. Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential Information.

1. The Contractor must not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Information
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further, Contractor,
including but not limited to all its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not
use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential Information In response to a
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request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, in response to a
subpoena, etc.. without first notifying DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to
consent or object to the disclosure.

3. If DHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound by additional
restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such
additional restrictions and must not disclose PHI in violation of such additional

restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards.

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End
User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for
any other purposes that are not indicated in this Contract.

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives
of DHHS for the purpose of inspecting to confirm compliance with the terms of this
Contract.

METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Application Encryption. If End User is transmitting DHHS data containing
Confidential Data between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have
been evaluated by an expert knowledgeable in cyber security and that said
application's encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the internet.

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS
data.

3. Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data if
email is encrypted and being sent to and being received by email addresses of
persons authorized to receive such information.

4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User is employing the Web to transmit Confidential
Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be
secure. SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site.

5. File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file
hosting services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit
Confidential Data.

6. Ground Mail Service. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via certified ground
mail within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named individual.

7. Laptops and PDA. If End User is employing portable devices to transmit
Confidential Data said devices must be encrypted and password-protected.

8. Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open
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wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when
remotely transmitting via an open wireless network.

9. Remote User Communication. If End User is employing remote communication to
access or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be
installed on the End User's mobile device(s) or laptop from which information will be
transmitted or accessed.

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP), also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If
End User is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data, End User will
structure the Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure of
information. SFTP folders and sub-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data will
be coded for 24-hour auto-deletion cycle (i.e. Confidential Data vi/ill be deleted every 24
hours).

11. \^reless Devices. If End User is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices, all
data must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of Information.

RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative in whatever form it may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permitted
under this Contract. To this end, the parties must:

A. Retention

1. The Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or process data collected in
connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United

States. This physical location requirement shall also apply in the implementation of
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabilities, and includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in
place to detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems
and/or Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

4. The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data
in a secure location and Identified in section IV. A.2

5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored in a Cloud must be in a
FedRAMP/HITECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have
currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral, anti-
hacker, anti-spam, anti-spyware, and anti-malware utilities. The environment, as a
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whole, must have aggressive intrusion-detection and firewall protection.

6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures its complete cooperation with the State's
Chief Information Officer in the detection of any security vulnerability of the hosting
infrastructure.

6. Disposition

1. If the Contractor will maintain any Confidential Information on its systems (or Its
sub-contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for
securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and will
obtain written certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster
recovery operations. When no longer in use, electronic media containing State of
New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program
in accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media
sanitization, or otherwise physically destroying the media (for example,
degaussing) as described in NIST Special Publication 800-88, Rev 1, Guidelines
for Media Sanitization, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U. S.
Department of Commerce. The Contractor will document and certify in vrritlng at
time of the data destruction, and will provide written certification to the Department
upon request. The written certification will include all details necessary to
demonstrate data has been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable,
regulatory and professional standards for retention requirements will be jointly
evaluated by the State and Contractor prior to destruction.

2. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a
secure method such as shredding.

3. Unless othervwse specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data
by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, and any
derivative data or files, as follows:

1. The Contractor will maintain proper security controls to protect Department
confidential information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery
of contracted services.

2. The Contractor will maintain policies and procedures to protect Department
confidential information throughout the information lifecycle, where applicable, (from
creation, transformation, use, storage and secure destruction) regardless of the
media used to store the data (i.e., tape, disk, paper, etc.).
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3. The Contractor will maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department confidential information
where applicable.

4. The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place to
detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems and/or
Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

5. The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential Information.

6. If the Contractor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of an internal process or processes that defines specific security
expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a minimum
match those for the Contractor, including breach notification requirements.

7. The Contractor will work with the Department to sign and comply with all applicable
State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies
and procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of
obtaining and maintaining access to any Department system(s). Agreements will be
completed and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to
system access being authorized.

8. If the Department determines the Contractor Is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103, the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with the Department and Is responsible for maintaining compliance with the
agreement.

9. The Contractor will work with the Department at its request to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey Is to enable the Department and
Contractor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may
occur over the life of the Contractor engagement. The survey will be completed
annually, or an alternate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the Department may request the survey be completed when the
scope of the engagement between the Department and the Contractor changes.

10. The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless
prior express written consent is obtained from the Information Security Office
leadership member within the Department.

11. Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall
make efforts to investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to
prevent future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach.
The State shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from
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the breach, Including but not limited to; credit monitoring services, mailing costs and
costs associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due to
the breach.

12. Contractor must, comply with all applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
privacy and security of Confidential Information, and must in all other respects
maintain the privacy and security of PI and PHI at a level and scope that is not less
than the level and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies, including,
but not limited to, provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 552a), DHHS
Privacy Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b), HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45
C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that govern protections for individually identifiable health
information and as applicable under State law.

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to
prevent unauthorized use or access to it. The safeguards must provide a level and
scope of security that is not less than the level and scope of security requirements
established by the State of New Hampshire, Department of Information Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at https://www.nh.gov/doit/vendor/index.htm
for the Department of Information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and
procurement information relating to vendors.

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and incident
response process. The Contractor will notify the State's Privacy Officer, and
additional email addresses provided in this section, of any security breach within two
(2) hours of the time that the Contractor leams of its occurrence. This includes a
confidential information breach, computer security incident, or suspected breach
which affects or includes any State of New Hampshire systems that connect to the
State of New Hampshire network.

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this

Contract to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to
perform their official duties in connection with purposes identified in this Contract.

16. The Contractor must ensure that all End Users:

a. comply with such safeguards as referenced in Section IV A. above,
implemented to protect Confidential Information that is fumlshed by DHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this information at all times.

c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI, PI, or
PFI are encrypted and password-protected.

d. send emails containing Confidential Information only if encrvoted and being
sent to and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to
receive such information.

V4. Last update 04.04.2018 Exhibit K Contractorinttlats
DHHS Information

Security Requirements
Page 7 of 9 Date,



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

e. limit disclosure of the Confidential Information to the extent permitted by law.

f. Confidential Information received under this Contract and individually
identifiable data derived from DHHS Data, must be stored in an area that is
physically and technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons
during duty hours as well as non-duty hours (e.g., door locks, card keys,
biometric identifiers, etc.).

g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data, including any
derivative files containing personally Identifiable information, and in all cases,
such data must be encrypted at all times when in transit, at rest, or when
stored on portable media as required in section IV above;

h. in all other instances Confidential Data must be maintained, used and
disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-based
assessment of the circumstances involved.

i. understand that their user credentials (user name and password) must not be
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential information secure.
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or indirectly through
a third party application.

Contractor is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users. DHHS
reserves the right to conduct onsite inspections to monitor compliance with this
Contract, including the privacy and security requirements provided in herein, HIPAA,
and other applicable taws and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data
is disposed of in accordance with this Contract.

V. LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify the State's Privacy Officer, Information Security Office and
Program Manager of any Security Incidents and Breaches within two (2) hours of the
time that the Contractor learns of their occurrence.

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI in
accordance with the agency's documented Incident Handling and Breach Notification
procedures and in accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306. In addition to, and
notwithstanding. Contractor's compliance with all applicable obligations and procedures.
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor will:

1. Identify Incidents;

2. Determine if personally identifiable information is involved in Incidents;

3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as-required in this Exhibit or P-37;

4. Identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Incidents
and determine risk-based responses to Incidents; and

V4. Last update 04.04.2018 Exhibit K Contractorlnttials
DHHS Information

Security Requirements
Page 8 of 9 Date



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

5. Determine whether Breach notification is required, and, if so, identify appropriate
Breach notification methods, timing, source, and contents from among different
options, and bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation
measures.

Incidents and/or Breaches that implicate PI must be addressed and reported, as
applicable, in accordance with NH RSA 359-C:20.

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. DHHS contact for Data Management or Data Exchange Issues:

DHHSInformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov

B. DHHS contacts for Privacy issues:

DHHSPrivacyOfficer@dhhs.nh.gov

C. DHHS contact for Information Security Issues:

DHHSInformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov

D. DHHS contact for Breach notifications:

DHHSInformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov

DHHSPrivacy.Officer@dhhs.nh.gov

V4. Last update 04.04.2018 Exhibit K Contractor Inttlals M.
DHHS Information

Security Requirements W Iff ) lA
Page 9 of 9 Date
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state of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, Williun M. Gardner. Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that NORTHEAST DEAF AND

HARD OF HEARING SERVICBS, INC. is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New

Hampshire on April 28,2000.1 further cei^fy that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's office have been

received and is in good standing as far as this office is concerned.

Business ID: 344894

Certificate Number: 0004108856

c

o

a ■B

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 14tb day of June A.D. 2018.

William M. Gardner

Secretary of State



.Nor^nst De^ ind
Hird ̂  Hearing Semcea, ̂c.

56 Ojd Suncook Road, Suite 6, Concord, NH 03301

603-224-1850 Voice, 603-968-5889 VP

603-856-0242 Fax, 603-224-0691TTY

www.ndhhs.org

CERTIFICATE OF VOTE

/I t do hereby certify that:
(Name of the elected Officer of the Agency; cannot be contract signatory)

1. 1 am a duly elected Officer of Northeast Deaf and Hard of Hearing Services, Inc.
(Agency Name)

2. The following Is a true copy of the resolution duly adopted at a meeting of the Board of Directors of

the Agency duly held on vJuAf }0\
(Date)

RESOLVED: That the f 6e>arJ S
(Title of Contract Signatory)

is hereby authorized on behalf of this Agency to enter into the said contract with the State of New Hampshire
and to execute aiiy and all documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions)
or modifications thereto, as he/she may deem necessary, desirable or appropriate.

3. The forgoing resolutions have not been amended or revoked, and remain In full force and effect as of

the day of tjR
(Date Contract Signed)

4. /1,tr A:/f is
(Name of Contract Signatory)

of the Agency.

 the dulvelected/^L.f AH A 6
(Title of Contract Signatory)

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

County of

The forgoing instrument was acknowledged before me this

By pdLco
(Name of Elected Officer of the Agency)

(Signature of the Elected Officer)

/ SL day of l&

(NOTARY SEAL)
Commission Expires: 12M

Jus Peace)

F:\Master Contracts\NDHHS Certificate of Authority - Vote 2018



^  NORTDEA-01
ACC^KD- CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

SCOLE

DATE (MM/DOTYYYY)

12/07/2018

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If tho certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pollcy(ie8) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsements).

PROOUCER

Davis & Towie Morrlll & Everett Inc.
115 Airport Road
Concord, NH 03301

ShetTi A. Cole, ACSR

K0.EXI1: (603) 715-9764 ri«.Noi:(603) 225-7935
scole^avistowle.com

INSUREWSIAFFORDINO COVERAGE NAIC*

insurera;MMG Insurance ComDanv 15997

INSURED

Northeast Deaf and Hard of Hearing
Services. Inc.
56 Old Suncook Road Suite 6
Concord, NH 03301

iNsuRERe;Travelers Insurance 19046

INSURER C:

INSURER 0:

INSURER E:

INSURER F:

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR PWVY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE

ADDL

IN5P
SU8R

wvn POLICY NUMBER
POLICY EFF
IMMffWVYYYYl

POLICY EXP
(MM/nrVYYYYl UMITS

A X COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

)E 1 X 1 OCCUR BP10950012 04/23/2018 04/23/2019

EACH OCCURRENCE
,  1,000,000

CLAIMS-MAC
DAMAGE TO RENTED J  250,000

MEO EXP (Am one oenont
,  5,000

PERSONAL & AOV INJURY
^  1,000,000

GENT. AGGREGATE LIMIT APPUES PER: GENERALAGGREGATE
,  2,000,000

policy] 1 |loc
OTHER:

PRODUCTS ■ COMPADP AGG
,  2,000,000

A AUTOMOBILE LIABIUTY

BP10950012 04/23/2018 04/23/2019

COMBINEO SINGLE LIMIT ^  1,000,000

ANY AUTO

>IEOULEO
ITOS

BODILY INJURY (Per oerwjnt s

OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

Strife ONLY

sc
At BODILY INJURY (Per acddenl) s

X X iff
PROPERTY DAMAGE
iPw ecadentT s

s

A X UMBRELLA UAB

EXCESS UAB

X OCCUR

CLAIMSAflAOE KU10950012 04/23/2018 04/23/2019

EACH OCCURRENCE
J  1,000,000

AGGRE(SATE
,  1,000,000

OeO X RETENTIONS 10,000 s

B WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS'UABILrrY ^/n
ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER®<ECUTIVE ("771fjmglgM^Mg^EXCLUDEDT [Nj
If vM, detcrlM under
nF.SGRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

Nf A

9JUB-9F93644-3-16 04/14/2018 04/14/2019

V PER OTH-
A STATIITF FR

E.L. EACHACaOENT
,  500,000

E.L DISEASE EA EMPLOYEE
,  500,000

E.L DISEASE POLICY LIMIT
,  500,000

DCSCRIPTKM OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACOR0101, AddWotwl Raraik* SchMuto. ray b« tOKlwd H mora •pac* It rtqtiirtd}
Workers Compensation 3A States: NH

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

DHHS, State Of NH
129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF. NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POUCY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25(2016/03) (D1988-2015ACORDCORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD



NDHHS
Northeast Deaf and

Hard of Hearing Services, Inc.

56 Old Suncook Road, Suite 6, Concord, NH 03301
603-224-1850 Voice, 603-224-0691 TTY

info@ndhhs.org

www.ndhhs.org

Mission Statement

Mbrtfieast JDeaf ancC J-CarcC of J-fearing Services (MT>J-[!HS)
is dedicated to serving Deaf and J-Card of J^earing
indvviduaCs in an environment that is communicativeCy
unrestricted and "naturaC to them, MDJ-fJ-fS is

comrnitted to hiring staff members 'who are fluent in sign
Canguage and caj}abCe of identifying and meeting
co'nsumers' preferred mode of communication. MDJ-fJ-fS
seeks to empower, educate and advocate for equaC access
and opportunity for Deaf and J-fard of hearing citizens of
!New J-fampshire. y/e are committed to the provision of
services in a cuCturaCCy sensitive environment, which
promotes independence and productivity.
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McLamey & Company, LLC

Cfrtf/lfti ftiWic Aocounxanis & Biainew Advison
Brian F. McLamcy, MBA, CPA'TFS Robert F. Siggcns. MST, CPA
James O.Nash, MSA, CPA

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Boerd ofOirecton of

Nortfaeast Deaf end Hard ofHearing Services, Inc.
56 Old SuDcook Road, Suite 6
Concord, New Hampshire 03301

Report on the Fisaodal StateoMsts

We have audited the eooonipaaylsg flnaadal statements of Northeast Deaf end Hard of Hearing Services, Inc. (a nonptofit
organizaTron) as of Jme 30,2018 sod 2017, and die related statements of activities, functiona] and flows for the
year then entlnd, and the related notes to the financial statements.

Maut^emat*s RtsptmtitBtttfor Ae Pbtmdal StatataO

Management is responsible for die piepaiation and ftir pretentatioo of these financial statements in acconlance with **Tonntinfl
principles generally accqited in the Unitad States of America; this inchides the design, hnpfemcatation, and mtAntmnmnr* of
internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financia] statemgnta tfatf ere flee from material miastatemeot,
whether doe to fraud or error.

Audlior*i Re^on^bUlff

Our responsibility Is to express en (pinion on these financia] statements based on our audh. We conducted our audit in
with auditing standards geneially accepted in the United States of America and the tpplicable to fiiMmdal audits
contained in Govtnvnan Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United Those standards require
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial tHttgmgpts are free from material
misstaterocnt

An audit involves perfiniRing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disdosores in the fiti*nri»i
The procedures selected dqiend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material mlsstatement of ihe
financial statements, due to fraud or error, la making those risk assessroeots, the auditor considers {mrnwl control
relevant to (he entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
apprcpriate in the cireisnstances, but not for the purpose ofoqsressing an opinicQ on the effectiveness of tee entity's internal
control. Accofdingly, we express no such opinkn. An sodh also includes evaluating the appetyriaieness of aecounthig policies
used and tee reasonaMeness of signfficant accounting estimrtes made by management, as wdl as evaluating the overall
presentation ofthe financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and qppnyriate to provide a for our audit opinion.

OpbsUm

In our opinion, tee financial statements rofenod to above present Curly, in all material respects, the financial position of Northeast
Deaf and Hard of Hearing Sovices, Inc. (a nonprofit organization) as of June 30,2018 and 2017, and the changes bi its net assets
and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.

OUier Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance vrtth Gaverrment Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 10,2018, on our consklerelaon
of Northeast Deaf and Hard ofHeaiing Services, Inc.*s internal control over finimdaJ reporting and on our tests of its compliance
with certain proviskms of laws, regnlations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to
describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not
to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integrai part of an audit
peiformed in accordance with Covemmens Auditing Standards in considering Northeast Duf and Hard of Hearing Services.
Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

McLarney & Company, LLC
October 10,2018

Trcmonr Sran^r. (xMKorJ. NH Phone: 60'L224-49'^0 Fax: 603-226^*^0



Northeast Deaf and Hard of Hearing Services

Statements of Ftnandal Position

For the Years Ended done 30,2018 and 2017

ASSETS

WItboot Donor Whb Donor 2018 2017

Corrent Assets Restffctions Restrictions Total Total

Cash (Note 2,5) S  205,692 $ S 205.692 S 218,092

Accounts Recdvable (Note 2) 24,156 24,156 40,906

Grants Recdvable - Cuhent (Note 3.5) 25,155 r 25,155 47,343
Deposits 3,000 r 3,000 3,000

Prepaid E]q>enses 5.167 5,167 5.923

Total Current Assets 263,170 - 263,170 315364

Fixed Assets (Note I)

Furaiture andHxtures 7.756 7,756 7,756

Office Equipment, Computers 45,996 45,996 45,996

Software Devdopment, Net 3,034 ■V. 3,034 5,009
Lea$du>ld Improvements 5,765 5,765 5,765
Accumulated Depreciation (51,365) - (51365) (50368)

Total Fixed Assets, Net 11,187 - 11,187 14359

TOTAL ASSETS S  274,357 s S 274357 $ 329323

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current Uabilhies
Accounts Payable S  10,630 s  • S  10.630 S  10,824
Accrued Expenses 27,114 27,114 34313

Total Current Liabilities 37.744 •7' 37.744 45.137

Net Assets

Net Assets (Note 2,5) 236,612 •y 236,612 284386

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS S  274,357 $ $ 274357 S 329,523

f>cc Accnmponying Notes and Auditor's Report
Page 2



Nortbeast Deaf sod Hard of Hearing Servfces
Statements of Activities

For the Years Ended Jane 30^018 and 2017

Witfaont Donor With Donor

RestrictioDs Restrictions

2018

Total

2017

Total

Revenue and Suooort (Note 2.91

Foundation Grants

Government Grants

Contributions

Program Revenue
ReferraJ Fees

Interest Inccmie

$  29,750 $

256,566

27,966

287,963 i

68,870

77

$  29,750

256,566

27,966
287,963
68,870

77

$  36,250
435,562

54,375
226,944
68,948

43

TOTAL REVENUE AND SUPPORT 671,192 .t;. 671,192 822,122

Fvnffl'WPl ]&tP9ns<J5

Procrara Services

Adult Education

Outreach

ReferTBl Services

TTY - Relay

SuDDOitinB Services

General & Administrative

Fund Raising

172,490

46,503

357,457

61,686

75,285

5.544

172,490

46,503

357,457

61.686

75,285

5,544

192,549

49,220

404.113

70,208

20,967

8,083

TOTAL FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES 718,966 718,966 745,141

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS (Note 9) 47,773 (47,773) 76,981

Net Assets - Beginning of Year 284,386 -• 284,386 207,405

NET ASSETS - END OF YEAR $  236,612 $ $ 236,612 $ 284.386

Sec Accompanying Notes and AtJditor's Report
Pane }



Northeast Deaf and Hard of Hearing Services
Statements of Cash Flows
June30,201Sand 2017

2018 2017

Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Change in Net Assets $  (47.773) $  76,981
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net
cash provided (used) by operating activities
Depreciation 1,097 635

Amortization 3,802 3340

(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable 16,750 230,777

(Increase) decrease in grants receivable 22,188 (86341)
(Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses 756 (2.346)
(Increase) decrease in seciffity deposits - (3.000.00)
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable (194) (66.504)
Increase (deczease) in other accrued liabilities (9.025) 20.580

Total adjustments 35,374 97.241

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities

Cash Flows From Finaodng Activities
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Financing Activities

Cash Flows From Investing Activities

Proceeds related to fixed asset settlement

Acquisition of fixed assets

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Investing Activities

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH

CASH AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH AT END OF YEAR

$  (12,400) $ 174^

(5.765)

(5.765)

$  (12,400) $ 168,457

$  218,092 S 49,635

S  205,692 $ 218,092

See Accompanying Notes and Auditor's Report
Page 4



Northeast Deaf and Hard of Hearing Services
Statements of Functional Expenses

For the Years Ended Jane 30,2018 and 2017

PROGRAM SERVICES

l^ferral Relay Total Program Oeneral & Fund

^dvcrtising & Media Outreach
Education Outreach Services Services Services Administrative Raising
S  58 $ $  158 S  18 S  234 S  148 $

Contributiorts - .

50
'rogram Expenses 9,079 23305 42325 1,824 76,933 678
interpreters Fees 15,784 - 37351 2,134 55,170
^riming & Publicatioirs 340 • 462 60 862 187
Travel 7,236 240 9320 1,015 18,011 1,876 .

Personnel Expenses 118,405 9,190 169,489 38,109 335.193 45,648
Payroll Taxes 8,959 695 12,824 2,883 25361 3,454
rund Raising Expenses

- - 1,755 . 1,755 5344
wOrtsulting 766 75 17.402 711 18355
Dues, Subscriptions, Licenses - 250 . 250 809
Repairs & Maintertance - -- > w

Insurance 5,463 687 29361 4,104 39,616
Email & Website 368 43 43 43 496 109
Referral Fees Expense '• ."j. 110 110

Staff Development, Training 395 1 50 500 945 200
Supplies 79 2.101 112 2393 2,160
felephone. Pagers

- 5,910 1,496 7.406 864
Misceiianeous 30 2339 561 . 2.930 2,038
InterestfFirumce Charges -

t

Accounting & Legal Services - 15,106 15,106 1,612
Rent &. Utilities 5,503 9346 11,667 8,209 34,725 8,671
Office Expense 24 383 912 467 1,786 1.883
Depreciation end Amortization •• - . . 4.899
TOTAL EXPENSES S  172,490 $ 46303 S 357,457 $ 61,686 $  638,136 $  75385 $ 5344

See Accompanying Notes and Auditors Report
Pages

2018

Total

Expenses

382

50

77,611

55,170

1.049

19,887

380,841

28,815

7,299

18,955

1,059

39,616

605

no

1,145

4,452

8,270

4,968

16,717

43397

3,669

4,899

2017

Total

Expenses

i  1326

78,713

55,837

1314

12,155

362,198

27,857

12,051

16,317

1.855

31,354

2,847

328

22,172

3,797

6,156

7394

25,078

47365

4,550

3.975

S 718.966 $ 745,141



NORTHEAST DEAF AND HARD OF HEARING SERVICES, INC
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30,2018 and 2017

NOTE 1 - NATURE OF THE ORGANIZATION

Northeast Deaf and Hard of Hearing Services, Inc. (the "Organization") is a non-profit
organization dedicated to serving deaf and hard of bearing individuals in a culturally
sensitive environment diat is communicationally unrestricted and **oataral", and wfai^
promotes independence and productivity. It is fite mission of die organization to
empower, educate and advocate for equal access and opportunity for deaf and hard of
hearing citizens ofNew Hanqishiie.

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIHCANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Recent Accounting Outdance

During the year ended December 31, 2017 the mganization iiD|demented ASU 2016-
14, Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit Entities. Accordingly, the beginning
balances of the donor restricted net asset categories (temporal ily and pemumently
restricted) have been retroactively adjusted to consolidate all donor restricted net assets
into one classification, with donor restrictions. The ASU requires additional disclosures
in the areas of liquidity and endowment funds and modifies the direct method
presentation of the Statement of Cash Flows, requires reclassification of investment
expenses \^ch are netted in invcstznent return to include internal investment expenses.
In addition, it requires any underwater portion of the organization's endowment funds
to be adjusted fiom net assets without donor restrictions to net assets with donor
restrictioDS.

Net Assets

Net assets, revenues, gains, and losses are classified based on the existence or absence
of donor or grantor imposed restrictions. Accordingly, net assets and changes therein
are classified and reported as follows:

Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions - Net assets available for use in general
operations and not subject to donor (or certain grantor) restrictions. The governing
board has designated, from net assets without donor restrictions, net assets for an
operating reserve and board-designated endowment.

Net Assets With Donor Restrictions - Net assets subject to donor- (or certain grantor-)
imposed restrictions. Some donor-imposed restrictions are temporary in nature, such as
those that will be met by the passage of time or other events spedfied by the donor.
Other doiK>r-imposed restrictions are perpetual in nature, \^here the doncn stipulates
that resources maintaixttd in perpetuity. Donor-imposed restrictions are released
when a restriction expires, foat is, when the st^ulated time hu elapsed, ̂ ^ileD the
stipulated purpose for which the resource was restricted has been fulfilled, or both.

Revenue Repppnitinp
Revenue is recognized vdien earned. Program service fees and payments under cost
reimbursable contracts received in edvaitce are deferred to the applicable period in
which the related services are performed or e}q)enditures are incurred, respectively.
Contributions are recognized vdien cash, securities or other assets, an unconditiona]
promise to give, or notificatioo of a benefidal interest is received. Conditional promises
to give are not recognized until the conditions on which they depend have been
substantially met

Page 6



NORTHEAST DEAF AND HARD OF HEARING SERVICES, INC.
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2018 and 2017

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POUCIES (Continuedl

Cfsh and Cftsh Eouivalcnts
The oiganization considers all cash and hi^y Hqoid fiTwrtciai instruments widi original
maturities of three or less, vrinch are neid^ held for nor restricted by donors
for long-tenn purposes, to be cash and cash equivalents.

Aocounte Receivable

Accounts Recdvable are considered by management to be ftiily collectible and
Bcoordingly no aUowance for doubtful accounts is oonadered necessary.

Hie preparation of statements in confonmty with generally accepted
isinciples requires us to make estimates and assumptions that affect the

reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of die financial statements and the
reported gmountw of revenues and expenses during the reporting period Actual results
could differ from those estimates, and those differences could be materiaL

Advertising Costs

Advertiaing costs are charged to operations when incuzred

Property and Equipmem
Property and equipment are recorded at cost, or, if donatrd, at the fair value at the date
of ̂natioiL Noidieast Deaf and Hard of Hearing Services, Inc. follows the policy of
cqritalizing expenditures for property and equipment in excess of $500. Mqor
renewals and improvements arc capitalized, while replacements, maintenance and
repairs, which do not materially ext^ the useful lives of the assets, are expensed
Deiaeciation is calculated using the straight-line method over the following rsHmatrri
usdiil lives:

OfiGce Equipment and Furniture 5-7 years
Development of Software 5 years

Depreciation amounts expensed and reflected in the statements of activities for foe
figftftl years ended June 30,2018 and 2017 is $1,097 and $635, respectively.

Income Taxes

The organization is organized as a nonprofit corporation and has been recognized by
foe IRS as exempt fiom federal income taxes under IRC Section 501(cX3). Thus it
qualifies for the charitable contribution deduction under IRC Sections
nOfbXlX^Xvi)- The organization is annually required to file a Retum of
Organization Exempt fiom Income Tax (Fonn 990) with the IRS. In addition, the
entities axe subject to income tax on net income that is derived fiom business activities
that are unrelated to their exempt purposes. Management has determined that the
organization is not subject to unrelated business income tax aixl has not filed an
Exempt Organization Business Income Tax Retum (Form 990-T) with the IRS.
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NORTHEAST DEAF AND HARD OF HEARING SERVICES, INC.
Notes to the Financia] Statements

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2018 and 2017

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNmCANT ACCOUNTING POUCIES fContmucdl

Functional Expense Allocation

The costs of program and siq>portmg services activities have been summarized on a
ftmctional basis in the staternent of activities. Ute statement of functional expenses
present the natural classification detail of expenses by function. Accordingly, certain
costs have been allocated among the programs and supporting services benefit^

Donated Services

Contributions of donated services that create or enhance nonfinancial assets or that
require specialized skills, are provided by individuals possessing those skills, and
would typically need to be purchased if not provided by donation, are recorded at their
&ir values in the period received

ShiKwpgAHwdling
All amounts billed to a customer in a sales transaction related to shipping and Imtwtinig
ivpresent revenues earned are reported as revenue/ Costs Incurred by the Organization
for shipping and handling, including costs paid to third parties are reported as an
expense.

NOTE 3 - GRANTS RECEIVABLE

Grants receivable rqneseot grants iEbr which the donor organization has
unconditionally committed to providing fimding in the future. Grants receivable are
recognized as income on the statement of activities at the time the commitment is
made by the donor orgamzation. Giant commitmeiits which will not be received
within the next twelve months are reflected as other assets on the statement of

financial position. The method of accounting for grants receivable has the affect of
creating fluctuations between positive and negative changes in net assets fitrni year to
year as reflected on the statement of activities.

Grants for which the donor organization places contingencies are recognized as
su{^rt when the funds are actually received or when the contingency has been
satisfied.

All grants are expected to be received; therefore, no allowance for doubtfiil accounts
has been established.

NOTE 4 - PENSION FLAN

Northeast Deaf and Hard of Hearing Services, Lnci sponsors a 403(b) Tax Deferred
Annuity Plan. Employees are eligible to participate in the plan following a 12
consecutive month period of employment of at least 1,000 hours of service. All
eligible employees may elect to have employee elective defenals. Northeast Deaf and

of Hearing Services, Inc. currently makes no mandatory or discretionary
contributions.

NOTE S - SUPPLEMENTAL CASH INFORMATION

There were no non cash activities during 2018 arxi 2017»
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NORTHEAST DEAF AND HARD OF HEARING SERVICES, INC
Notes to the Ftnsncial StBtements

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2018 and 2017

NOTE 6 - CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK
Thm Orgsmiyatiftii iwflfnteifw an npf|yt|ng ftccftimt at ftne hank. QpendUlg acCOUQtS at
an institution are insured by tite Federal Dq)osit Insurance Corporaticn (FDIQ <q>to
$250,000. Cash at this institution exceeded Federally insured limits at June 30,2018
and 2017 by SO and $0, respectively.

CLU.IL'

Hie Organization receives all its revenue fiom New Hampshire sources.

7-COMMITMENTS

The Organization entered into a lease for office space m Concord, New Hanqishire m
2017 for five years until March 2022 for $3,000 per month until April 2020 when the
rent will be $3,150 per rnnnAi Rent expense for the years ended June 30, 2018 and
2017 were $36,000 and $47,265, reflectively.

Future minimum lease payments required for the year ended:

June 30,2019 $36,000
June 30,2020 $36,450
June 30,2021 $37,800
June 30.2022 $28^50

NOTE 8 - FUNCTIONAL FJCFENSES

The finatxniii statcmciits report certain categories of expenses that are attributed to more
fhan one program or suj^xnting function. Therefore, expenses require allocation on a
reasonable basis tiiat is consistently qipUed. The expenses that are allocated inchi^
occupancy, depreciation, and amortization, >^uch are allocated on a square footage basis,
as well as salaries and wages, benefits, payroll taxes, professional services, office
expenses, information technology, interest, insurance, and other, which art allocated on
the basis of of time and effort

NOTE 9 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS u ̂  4. u
The Organization has evaluated subsequent events through October 10, 2018, wmcn is
the dfttr the fiTMmciftI statements were available to be issued for events requiring
recording or disclosure in the financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2018 and
none were found.
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McLamey & Company, LLC

Certified Accounuino 9 Btainas Adviacn
Brian F. McLamey, MBA, CPA/PFS Robert F. Siggcns, MST, CPA
James O. Nash, MSA, CPA

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPUANCB AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON

AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVEJWMENTAUDrnm ̂ANDARDS

To tbe Board ofThistees of
Northeast Deaf and Hard ofHearing Services, Inc.
5$ Old Sunoook Road, Suite 6
CODConl, New HampshifB 03301

We have in eccordsnce with the aidhmg standards geoerally auqKed m the United States of America and the standards
BTmyTuM" to audits contained in Oovemmeut AodHizig Standards tssned by the Comptroller General of the United States, Oie
financial statements ofNortheast Deaf and Hard of Hearing Services, Inc. (a nonprofit organization), which coniprise the rtalemenl of
Enandal position as of lune 30,2018, and the related statements ofacthrities, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related
notes to foe financial staftmenls, and have issued our report thereon dated October 10,2018.

Internal Control ovg Financhl Repnrting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial stalenienta, we considered Norfoeast Deaf and Hard of Hearing Services, Inc's
internal control over finandaJ rcportrng (interoal control) to detenmne the audit procednres that arc appropriate in the drcumstances
for the purpose of expressing our optnioo on the financial stirtrmmti, bat not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
cflectiveness of Northeast Deaf and Hard of Hearing Services, Inc.*s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on
foe efiectiveness ofthe Organization's internal contro).

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control docs not allow management or employees, fa the
nonnal course of perfoiming their assigned fimctioiis, to piwtat, or detect and correct, nrisstatements on a timely basis. A mattrial
weakness is a deficiency, or a corobfaatkm ofdefidendes, in fatemal control, such that there is a reasonable possibiUty that a material

of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significam
deficiency b a deficiency, or a combinatios of deficiencies, fa interoal control that b less severe than a material weakness, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of bternal control was for the limited poipose described fa the first paragrM* of fo» section and was not derigned
to Mwtrify all deficiencies in Internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitBtiona,
during our audit we did not identify any dcficiendes fa interoal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. Howevrt, material
weaknesses may exist that have not hero identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As pert of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Northeast Deaf end Hard of Hearing Services, Inc-'s financfal ftEtcroents are
fnc fiom material misstatemcnt, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provbions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements, noncompliancc with which could have a direct and material effect on the determfaation of financial statement amounts.
However providing an opinion on compliance with those provbions was not an objective of our audh, and accordingly, w do not
express wch an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noocompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Punxwe of this Report

The purpose of thb report is solely to deacribc the scope of our testing of intemol control and compliance and the results of thai testing
and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the organization's internal control or on compliance. Thb report is an Integral
part of an audit prtformed to accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the organization's internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, thb communication b not suitable for any other purpose.

McLamey & Company. LLC
October 10.2018

tTncTmnorrrSrreer. Q>rKonl. NH Plionc: 60V224-4990 Hoc: 60V22600.30
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9

10
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Total revenue-add lines 8 through 11 (must equal Part VIII. column (A), line 12)
Q

Prior Y«v Current Year

526,187 314,282
295,892. 356,833,

43 77

822.122 671,192
13

14
15

16a

b
17
18

19

rants and similar amounts paid (Part IX. column (A). lines 1-3)
Benefits paid to or for membera (Part IX. column (/^.Dne 4)
Salaries, other cxxnpensaUon, employee benefits (Part DC, column (A), lines 5-1())
Professional fundralsing fees (Part K, column (A), ilnelle)
Total fundralsing expenses (Part IX, column (D), line 25) ► 5^5 4 4.
Otherexpenses (Part IX, column (A), lines 11a-11d, 11f-24e) . . . 'T
Total expenses. Add lines 13-17 (must equal Part IX, column (A), line 25)
Revenue less expenses. Subtract line 18 from line 12

410.055. 409.657.

^  -'-x

335,086 309,309.
745,141 718,966.
76,981 -47,774j

20 Total assets (Part X line 16)
21 Total liabilities (Part X lino 26) . ;
22 Net assets or fund balances. Subtract line 21 from line 20
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Fomi990CW17) Pige2
P Strill III atement of Program Service Accomplishments

Check If Schedule O contains a response or note to any line In this Part III Q
1  Briefly describe the organization's mission: ^ ^

SERVING DEAF AND HARD OF HEARING INDIVIDUALS

2  Did the organJzatlon undertake any significant program services during tt>e year which were not listed on the
priorFom,990or990-EZ?
H "Yea," deecrfbe these new services on Schedule 0.

3  Did the organization cease conducting, or make signfflcant changes In how It conducts, any program

DYe, HNo
n "Yes," describe those changes on Schedule O.

4  Describe the organization's program eonrice accomplishments for each of Its three largest program services, as measured by
expenses. Section 501 (c)(3) and 501 (c)(4) organizations are required to report the amount of grants and allocations to others
the total experrses, end revenue, If any. for each progrem aervice reported.

4a (Code: )(Expens8s$ 357,457. Including grants of $ 0. ) (Revenue $ 350,382. )

gP-IiL&gUm.E_^B„E^SENC)L,REQgESTS FROM THE DEAF AND

J;HEQ-UGHQUT _THE_.STATE of )jEW. HAMPgHIfig

4b (Code: )(Expenses$ 108, 189. Including grants of $ 0.){R9vonue$ 119,892. )
IijE..0B.QANIZATION_OFETR_S_.EDUCATION AND ACCESS TO THE ̂ EAF AND ffTOlD OF HEARING ~
INp^mmLSJ[N.XHJ_SJBIE_OFjgjJ^,_WXTJLA GOfi^OF^^OWE
ayMLaBfeE_B£SODRCE$..glLC|LAS„CO?MJNICATIp)^J3EyiCES^.J0jTE\RPJ^TJR$^^ WORKSHOPS

^ (Code: )(Expenses$ 172,4 90. including grants of $ Oi)(R0venue$ 166, 484. )
ADULT EDUCATION AND BASIC SfaLLS " - - - /. .i

4d Other program services (Describe in Schedule 0.)
(Expenses $ Including grants of $ ) (Revenue $ )

4e Total program service expenses ► 638,136.
REVCWi2n8PRO Fonn &90 (2017)



FonnWOpOIT)

IMIH CheckDst of Rgqutmd Schedutes

1  Is th© organizatJon described In section 501(c)(3) or 4947(a)(1) (other than a private foundation)? tf "Yes,'
completB Schedule A

Z  Is the organization required to oompleteSchedb/s a; Schedu/so/Comriboftvs (see Instructions)? . . .
3  Did the organization engage In direct or Indirect political campaign activities on behalf of or in opposition to

candidates for pubOcoffloe7ff'yes/comp/bfaSchedbii9C,P^/
4  Section 601(c)(3) organlzatfons. Did the organization engage in lobbying activities, or have a section 501(h)

electi(m In effect during the tax year?//'Ves.'compfefe Schedu/bC, Avf//
6  Is the organization a section 501 {cX4). 501(c)(5). or 501(c)(6) organization that receives membership dues,

assessments, or similar amounts as defined fan Revenue Procedure 68-19? tf Tes;' comphte Schedule C
Pert III

6  Did the organization maintain any donor advised funds or any similar funds or accounts for which donors
have the right to provide advloe on the distribution or Investment of amounts In such funds or accounts? If
'Yes.'complete Schedule D, Pert I

7  Did the organization receive or hold a conservation easement. Including easements to preserve open space,
theenvironmerti. historic land areas, or historic structures?//*7(38;'co/TtpfetsScheduteO.P&rf/f . . .

8  Did the organtzatton maintain coOectkms of works of art. historical treasures, or other stmllar assets? If "yes.'
complete Schedule D, Part III

9  Did the organization report an amount In Part X, line 21. for escrow or custodial acoourrt Dablllty, serve as a
custodian for amounts not listed In Part X* or provide credit counseling, debt maragement, credit repair, or
debt negotiation eervlcee? If "Ves,' comptote Schedule D, Part IV

10 Did the organization, directly or through a related organization, hold assets In temporarily restricted
endowm8nt8,permanentendowment8, orquasl-endowments?//'yes,'comp/bteSchedUfeD, ParfV' . .

11 if the organization's answer to any of the fotlowino questions Is "Yes," then complets Schedule D, Parts VI.
Vtl, VIII, DC. or X as appflcat>le.

a Did the organization report an amount for land, buildings, and equipment In Part X line 10? // "yes,'
complete Schedu/e D, Part VI

b Did the organization report an amount for investments-other securities In Part X One 12 that Is 5% or more
of Its total assets reported In Part X Una 16? // "Yes,' complete Schedule D, Part. VII

c Did the organization report an amount for Investments-program related In Part X line 13 that Is 596 or more
of Its total assets reported In Part X line 16? If "yes,'complete Schedule D, Part VIII

d Did the organization report en amount for other assets In Part X, line 15 that Is 596 or more of its total assets
reported In Part XDne 16?//"Yes, •cor7v>tefeSchert/teO,Rarf/X

e Did the organization report an amount for other liabilities In Part XBne 25? tf yea,' complete Schedule D, Part X
f Did the organlzatlcn's separate or consoHdatsd financial statements for the tax year fafwiude a footnote that ttldresses

the organlzBtion'8 liability for uncertain tax positions under RN 48 (ASC 746)?//"Yes;'corqpitetoSchedUlb A .
12 a C»d the organizatlor> obtain separate, IndeperKlent audited financial statements for the tax year? tf yes,' complete

Schedule D. Parts XI end XII
b Was the organization Included In consolidated, Independent audited financial statements for the tax year? If

yes, 'and if the organization answered 'No'to Une 12a, than completing Schedule D, Parts XI and XII la optional
13 Is the organbaUon a school described In eectlonl70(b)(1)(A){il)?//"Yes, "comp/bteSchedu/eE . . . .
14 a Didtheorganlzationmaintalnanoffice.employeee, or agents outside of the United States?

b Did the organization have aggregate revenues or expenses of more than $10,000 from grantmaklng.
fundraising, business, Investment and program service activities outside the United States, or aggregate
foreign Investments valued at $100,000 or more? If "Yes," comphta Schedule F, Parts I and IV

16 Did the organization report on Part IX. column (A), line 3. more than $6,000 of grants or other assistance to or
for any foreign organization? If "Yes,' oomsptefe Schedule f. Parts II end IV

16 Did the organization report on Part DC. column (A), line 3, more than $5,000 of aggregate grants or other
assistance to or for foreign Individuals? tf "Yes,' complete Schedule F, Parts III and IV.

17 Did the organization report a total of more than $16,000 of expenses for professlonsi fundraising services on
Part IX column (A), lines 6 and 11 e? // "Yes," complete Schedule G. Part I (see Instructions)

18 Did tee organization report more teen $15,000 total of fundralslr>g event gross Income and contributions on
Part VIU, lines 1c end Ba7 tf yes,'complete Schedule Q, PartII

19 Did tee organization report more than $15,000 of gross Income from gaming activities on Part VIII. line 9a7
If "Yes," completB Schedule G, Part III

Vm No

1 X

2 X

3 X

4 X

6 X

e X

7 X

8 X

9 X

10 X

(  ̂

:ii
1lB X

lib X

11c X

lid X

lie X

111 X

12a X

12b X

13 X

14a X

14b X

15 X

16 X

17 X

18 X

19 X
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Form mo (2017)

Part IV Checldlst of Required Schedules (continued)

20a
b

21

22

23

24a

b

o

d

2Sa

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

35a

b

36

37

38

Did the organization operate one or more hospltal facilities? If 'Yes,'comphto Schedule H
If "Yes" to line 20a. did the organization attach a copy of Its audited finandal statements to this return?
Did the organization report more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to any domestic organization or
domesticgovemmerrtonPartIX, column (A), line 1?/f'y'es,"corrtptefeSc/)edli//e/,ftote/and// . . . .
Did the organization report more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to or for domestic Individuals on
Part DC, column (A), line 2? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule I. Parts I and III

DW the organization answer "Yes" to Part VU. Section A, line 3, 4. or 5 about compensation of the
organization's current and former officere, directors, trustees, key employees, and highest compensated
employees? If "Yes, • complete Schedule J
Did the organlzatkxi have a tax-exempt bond Issue with an outstanding principal amount of more than
$100,000 as of the last day of the year, that was Issued after December 31,2002? If "Yes,'answer lines 24b
throu0i 24d and complete Schedule K. If 140,'go to fine 2Sa
Did the organization invest any proceeds of tax-exempt bonds beyond a temporary period exception? . .
Did the organization maintain an escrow account other than e refunding escrow at any time during the year
to defease any tax-exempt bonds?

Did the organization act as an *on behalf oTIssuer for bonds outstanding at any time during the year? . .
Section 601 (o)^, 601{c)(^ and 601(o)(2Q organtzatloftS, Did the organization engage In an excess benefH
transaction with a disqualified person during the year? If 'Yes,'complete Schedule i. Part I
Is the organization aware that It engaged In an excess benefit transaction v^rlth a disqualified person in a prior
year, and that the transaction has not been reported on any of the organization's prior Fomts 990 or 990-EZ?
If "Yes,'complete Schedule L, Part I
Did the organization report any amount on Part X, tine 5, 6, or 22 for receivables from or payables to any
cunent or former offloers, directors, trustees, key employees, highest compensated employees, or
disqualified persons? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule L, Part II
Did the organization provide a grant or other assistance to an officer, director, trustee, key employee,
substantial contributor or employee thereof, a grant selection committee member, or to a 35% oorrtrolled
entttyorfamlly member of any of these persons?/fyes,'conrptete Schedufet, Part///
Was the organization a party to a business transaction with one of the fbilowlng parties (see Schedule L,
Part IV instnjctxMis for applicable filing thresholds, cortdltlons, and exceptions):
A current or former officer, director, trustee, or key employee? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule L Part IV . .
A family member of a current or former officer, director, trustee, or key employee? If "Yes,' complete
Schedule L, Part IV
An entity of which a current or former officer, director, trustee, or key employee (or a family member thereof)
was an officer, director, trustee, or direct or Indirect owner?/f *Yes,' eoffto/ofe Sc/)ecft//e/., Part/V
Did the organization recehre more than $25,000 In rwn-cash contributions? If "Yes,' complete Schedule /M
Dkj the organization receive contributions of art, hlstortcal treasures, or other similar assets, or qualified
conaerfa^on corMbuitonS7 If'Yes,'complete Schedule M
Did the organlzellon liquidate, terminate, or dissolve and cease operations? If •Yes," complete Schedule /V,
Pert I . . . ■
Did the organizatkxi eell, exchange, dispose of, or transfer rrwre than 25% of Its net assets? If "Yes,"
complete Schedule N, Part II
Did the organization own 100% of an entity disreganJed as separate from the organization under Regulations
sections 301.7701-2 and 301.7701-3?/fYes,*ccvrv)/efeSchertite a Part /.
Was the organization related to any tax-exempt or taxable entity? If "Yes," complete Schedule R, Part II. Ill
or fV, and Pert V, line 1
Did the organization have a controlled entity wfthin the meaning of section 512(b)(13)?
If "Yes" to line 35a, did the organization receive any payment from or engage In any transaction with a
contfoDed entity within the meaning of section 512(b)(13)7 If 'Yes,' complete Schedule R, Part V, line 2 .
Section 501(o)(9 orgarrizations. Did the organization make any transfers to an exempt non-charftable
related organization? If "Yes,' complete Schedule R, Part V, line 2

Did the organizatkxi conduct more than 5% of Its activities through an entity that Is not a related organization
and that is treated as a partnership for federal Income tax purposes? If 'Yes.'complete Schedule R
Part W
Did the organization complete Schedule O and provide explanations In Schedule 0 for Part VI, lines 11b and
19? Note. All Form 990 filers are required to complete Schedule O.

Ym 1 No

lEZ!■._2LIe ÎB

21 X

22 X

23

24a X

24b

24c
24d

2Sa X

25b X

28 X

27 X

□
28a !  X

28b X

28c X

29 X

30 X

31 X

32 X

33 X

34 X

3Se X

35h X

38 X

37 X

38 X

Fonn990 ̂ 7)
REVowisnepRO



FonT)990(2017)

Pni t V
P80«5

Statements Regarding Other IRS Filings and Tax CompUance
Check If Schedute O contains a response or note to any Rne In thte Part V □

la

b
0

2a

38

b

Sa
b
c

6a

10

11

a

b

12a
b

13

a

c

14a
b

la
lb

Enter the number reported in Box 3 of Form 109a Enter-0-if not applicable
Enter the number of Forme W-2Q Included In line 1a Enter -0- If not applicable.
Did the organization comply with backup withholding rules for reportable payments to vendors and
reportable gaming (gambling) winnings to prize winners?
Enter the number of employees reported on Form W-3, Transmfttal of Wage and Tax
Statements, filed for the calendar year ending with or within the year covered by this retum 2a
If at least one Is reported on Dne 2a did the organization file all required federal employment tax returns? .
Nota If the sum of lines 1 a end 2a Is greater than 250, you may be required to e-file (see instructions) . .
Did the organization have unrelated business gross Income of $1,000 or more during the year? . . ,
If "Yea* has It fDed a Form 990-T for this year? tf 'No' to Une 3b, provide en explanatkm in Schedule O.

4a At any Wme during the calendar year, did the crganlzatlcn have an interest In, or a signature or other authority
over, a financial account In a foreign country (such as a bank account, securities account, or ether financial
aoccunO?

b  tf "Yes," enter the name of the foreign country; ►
See instructions for tiling requirements for FlnCEN Form 114, Report of Foreign andThar^Accounts
(FBAR).

Was the organization a party to a prohibited tax shelter transaction at any time during the tax year? . . .
Did any taxable party notify the organization that It was or Is a party to a prohibited tax shelter traiwactlon?
If "Yes" to line 5a or 5b, did the organizaUon file Form 8888-1?
Does the organization have annual gross receipts that are normally greater than $100,000, and did the
organization solicit any contributions that were not tax deductible as charitable contrfbutions?
It "Yea," did the organization Include with every sollcltatfon an express statement that such contributions or
gifts were not tax deductlblo?
Organizations that may receive deductible contlbulions under eectlon 170(c).
Did the organization reoelve a payment In excess of $75 made partly as a contribution and partly tor goods
and services provided to the payor?
If "^esi'did the organization rxrttfy the dorxx of the value of the goods or services provided?Did the organization sell, exr^iange, or otherwise dispose of tangible personal property for which ft was
required to file Form 8282?
If "Yes," Indicate the numt>er of Forms 8282 filed during the year I 7d 1

1c

&

3a
Sb

4a

10b

Did the organization receive any funds, directly or Indirectly, to pay premiums on a personal benefit contract?
Did the organization, during the year, pay premiums, directly or Indirectly, on a personal borwflt contract? .
If the organlzatloh recah^ a cdntnbution of qualified Intellectual property, did the organlzatiofl file Form 8899 as required?
If the organization re^hred a contrBiutfon of care, boats, drplanss, or othar vehldss, did the organlzetlon file a Form 1098-C7
Sponsoring orgatfilzatlorts maintaining donor adirlsed funds. Did a donor advised fund maintained by the
spcruoring organization have excess business holdings at any time during the year? . r; ;•
^Mnsortng organizations malntaFning dorwr advlsad funds.
Did the sponsoring organization make any taxable distributions undsr section 4966?
Did the sponsoring organization make a distribution to a donor, donor advisor, or related person?
Section 501 (c)(7) organlzatfons. Enter
Initiation fees and capltai contributions Included on Part VIII, One 12 loa
Gross receipts, included on Form 990, Part Vlil, line 12, for public use of club fadlltlee .
Section 501(c)(12) organizations. Enter
Gross income from members or shareholders
Gross income from other sources (Do not net amounts due or paid to other sources
against amounts due or received from them.)
Section 4947(a)(1) hon-exem^ charitable trusts. Is the organization fifing Form 990 In lieu of Form 1041?
If "Yes," enter the amount of tax-exempt Interest received or accrued during the year. . (12b I
Section 501(c)(29) qualified nonprofit health Insurance Issuers.
Is the organization licensed to Issue quallfled health plans In more than one state?
Note. See the Irtstructiorre for additional irrformatlon the organization must report on Schedule O.
Enter the amount of reserves the organization is required to maintain by the states In which
the organization is licensed to Issue qualified health plans
Enter the amount of reserves on hand
Did the organization receive any paymerris for Indoor tanning services during the tax year?

11a

11b

13b
13c

6a
5b
6c

6a

6b

7a
7b

7c

7e
7f

IfYes." has It filed a Form 720 to report these payments? tf 'No.'provide en expianation in Schedute O

la.
7h

9a

9b

12a

13a

14a

14b

Ym No

I-J

i  J

.

'iLJ
X

X

J

y

REVO«n2n8PRO Form 990 (2017)



Form 990 (2017)

Port VI

Pi«*6
Qovemance, Management, and Disclosure For each 'Yes' response to lines 2 through 7b betow, and for a 'No'
response to One 8a, 6b, or 10b below, describe the circumstances, processes, or changes In Schedule 0. See Instnjctlons.
Check tf Schedule 0 contains a response or note to any line in this Part VI SI

Section JL Qovemlng Body and Management

1a la 13

lb 13

4

6

6

7a

Enter the number of voting members of the governing body at the end of the tax year. .
If there are material drfterences In voting rights among members of the governing body, or
H the governing body delegated broad authority to an executive committee or similar
committee, explain in Schedule O.

Enter the number of voting members Included In line 1 a, above, are Independent
Did any officer, director, trustee, or key employee have a family relationship or a business relationship with
any otfW officer, director, trustee, or employee?
Did the organization delegate control over management duties customarily performed by or under the direct
supervision of officera, directors, or trustees, or key employees to a management company or other person?

Did the organization make any significant changes to Its governing documents since die prior Form 990 was filed?
Did the organization become aware during the year of a significant dlveralon of the organlzation'a assets? .

Did the organizatkm have members or stockholders? !:
Did the organization have members, stockholders, or other persons who had the power to elect or appoint
orw or more members of the govemlng body?

Are any governance deciskxts of the organization reserved to (or subfect to af^roval b^ meml>ers,
stockholders, or persoru other than the governing body?

Did the organization contemporaneously document the meetings held or written actions undertaken during
the year by the following:

The governing body?
Each committee with authority to act on behalf of the governing body?
is there any officer, director, trustee, or key employee listed In Part 'Wl, Section A, who cannot be reached at
the organi^lon's mailing address? If 'Yes,' provide the names and addresses In Schedule O

7a

7b

8a

Bb

Ym Nq

Section B. Pollclea (TNs Section B requests Information about policies not required by the Internal Revenue Code.)

10a

b

11a

b

12a

b

c

13

14

15

a

b

16a

Did the organization have local chapters, branches, or affiliates?
if "Yes," did the organization have written polides and procedures governing the activities of such chapters,
affiliates, and branches to ensure their operations are consistent vrith the organization's exempt purposes?
Has the organtzallon provided a complete copy of this Form 990 to ell members of Its governing body before filing the form?

Describe In Schedule 0 the process, If any, used by the organization to review this Form 990.
Did the organization have a written conflict of Interest policy? If 'No, 'goto One 13
Were officers, directors, oi trustees, and key employees reqiired to disclose annually interests that could give rise to conflicts?

Did the organization regularly and consistently monitor end enforce compliance with the policy? If 'Yes,'
describe In Schedule 0 how this was done

Did the organization have a written whistleblower policy?
Did the orgaiilzation have a wrttter\ document retention and destruction policy?
Did the process for determining compensation of the fbiiowing persons include a review and approval by
independent pereons, comparability data, and contemporaneous sut>stantjat{on of the daObetation and decision?

The organization's CEO, Executive Director, or top management official

Other officers or key errtployees of the organization
If "Yes" to line 15a or 15b, describe the process In Schedule 0 (see Instructions).
Did the organization invest In. contribute assets to, or participate In a joint venture or similar arrangement
with a taxable entity during the year?

ff "Yes," did the organization foQow a written policy or procedure requiring the organization to evaluate its
participation in joint venture arrangements under applicable federal tax law, and take steps to safeguard the
organlzatfon's exempt status with respect to such arrangements?

Ym No

10a X

10b

11a X

'  1 ■' ' - 1
12a X

12b X

12c X

13 X

14 X

i  .
{ i: 1M
15a X

15b X

I  1

!' ■ ■
1
\  *u

16a X

<  ■ ' 1 r-
- r

16b
Section C. ENsclostire
17
18

19

20

List tfie states w^th which a copy of this Form 990 Is required to be filed ̂
Section 6104 requires an organization to make Its Forms 1023 (or 1024 if applicabi^, 9W,"a^ 990-T 50T^)@^'or^)
available for public inspection. Indicate how you made these available. Che^ aD that apply.
□ Own website □ Another's website IS) Upon request □ Other (explain in Schedule O)
Describe in Schedule 0 whether (and if so, how) the organization made Its govern!^ documerrts, conflict of interest policy, and
financial statements avaflable to the public during the tax year.
State the name, address, and telephone number of the person who possesses the organization's books and records: >■
SUSAN WOLF-DOWNES, 56 Old Suncook Road, Suite 6, CONCORD, NH 03301 (603)224-1850

REVOWlViflPRO Fonn6dO(2017)



Form 890 {2017)
Pao»7

Port VII Compensation of Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, Highest Compensated Employees, and
Independent Contractors

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line In this Part VII □
Section A. Officers. Directors. Trustees, Key Employees, and Hlgheet Compensated Emptoyees
18 Complete tWs table for all persona required to be listed. Report compensation for the calendar year ending with or within die
organization's tax year.

• List aO of the organization's ourrent officers, directofs. trustees (wtiether tndMduals or organizations), regardless of amount of
compensation. Enter -0- In columns (D), (E), and (F) If no compensation was paid.

• List all of the organization's ctindm key employees, if any. See Instructions for definition of "key employee.'
• List the organization's five current highest compensated employees (other than an officer, dlrectof, trustee, or key employee)

who recelvBd reportable compensation (Box 5 of Form W-2 and/or Box 7 of Form 1099-I^SC) of more than $100,000 from the
organization and any related organizations.

• Ust all of the organization's former officers, key employees, and highest compensated employees who received more than
$100,000 of reportable compensation from the organtzatlon and any related organizations.

• List ail of the organization's former droctore or trvstoee that received, In the capacity as a fomw director or trustee of the
organizattlon, more than $10,000 of reportable compensation from the organization end any related otganlzatlons.
List persons In the following order Individual trustees or directors; Institutional trustees; officers; key employees; highest
compensated employees; and former such persons.
B Check this box If neither the organization nor any related orHanlzatlon compensated any cun-ent offlcef, director, or trustee.

W
NamewidlltiB

(1) VINCENT YOUMATZ
TREASURER

(B)
Averao*
hounpv

Olstany
hour* for
rotatad

organtzstlons
bekwdotM

Bne)

(2)ELLEEN FLOCKHART
DIRECTOR

MICHAEL RITTER
CHAIRMAN

1.00

1.00

1.00

(C)
PodUon

{do not chock mora than ana
best, wtea pwaon b both en
offlcarandadlractOfArwta^

(D)
RaportaUe

oompentcilon
from
the

organization
(W-2/10e9-Ml8C)

Reportabb
DorrpanaeScn from

rtfatad
orgenbationa

(W-2/10e9-MISC}

(R
Eetknitad
amount of

other

from the
orgardzation
endralatad

orgaiduiaona

(4) NORMAN LAFOND
vice"chairman~

1.00

_.g) PETER SIMONEAU
' SEC^TARY

1.00

(6) DEBORAH _BM LEY
*DIRECT0*R

1.00

(7) GLENN BROWN
DIRECTOR

1.00

(B)TINA C00K_
DI RECTOR*

1.00

(9) CHARLOTTE RICE
'director

1.00

(10)CIAUDE BOUCHER
director

1.00

(11) CHRISTINE GREENWOOD
dire'ctor

1.00

(12)CHIST0PHER EMERSON
* 'director*

1.00

(13)MARY BETHJCUI^
'directo'r

1.00

REvoariznapfto Form 990 (2017)



FoRn 990 (2017)

Part VII

Peoe0
Section A. Offtoers, Plroctofs. TniBtoea, Kay Ernptoycea. end Htahegt Comperoated Employees (conUnuod)

(C)

(A)

NatM Awtga
hounp*'

WMk(tetBny
tiouretor

I  t I *
miM

orBanlzBifan*
tMlOW dotlMj

IkM)

Petition

(do not chtdc mort than one
box. unlea pwion i» twth en
cfHoer and a di'BCluAi'uetee)

ReportaUe
confMnaatlon

from

the

of^vlzstion
(W-2A099-MISC9

m

Reportafala
oofnpenmtlcai from

rotated

orgwiiratione
(W-2/1090-M1SC9

(P)

Eethheted

aRDiart of

othv

oompanecdon
from the

Ofgentzadon
and rotated

Qrvantaaflcoe

(15)

G9

GS.

m

M.

fid).

M

m.

^

lb Sub-total ^
c Total from continuation aheeta to Part VII, Saotion A b
d Total (add Hnea lb and 1c) . b

Total number of Individuals Onduding but not limited to those listed above) vrho received more than $100,000 of
repoftable compensation from the organization ►

Dk) the organization list any former officer, director, or trustee, key employee, or highest compensated
BmfAoyee on line If'Yes,'complete Schedule J for such IndMdud
For any Individual listed on line 1a, is the sum of reportabie compensation and other compensation from the
organization and related organtzatlons greater than $150,0007 tf "Yes,' complete SchedUte J for such
indMduaJ
Did any person listed on line 1 a receive or accrue compensation from any unrelated organization or Individual
for services rendered to the organization? If Yes,' complete Schedule J for such person

Ym No

{■irtii*
3 X

.1 I i
4

LJ
X

- t ■ -^f
6 X

Section B. Independent Contractore
1  Complete this table for your five highest compensated independent contractors that received more than $100,000 of

compensation from the organlzatloo. Report compensation for the calendar year ending with or within the ofganization's tax
year.

(A)
N«no ind bwtnwa ■ddrast

IB)
Doscrtptlon of oorvloM

(C)
ComptdsaUon

2  Total number of Independent contractors (including but not limited to those listed above) who
received more than $1(X).000 of compensation from the organization P- J

REV 00/12^18 PRO Form 090 (2017)



Form 990^017)

Pnrt VIII Statement of Revenue
Pio^S

Check tf Schedule O contains a response or note to any line In this Part VIII □

r TOtBirownuo
(B)

Ralitsdor
exempt
function

Urrelated
biBineB*
rwenue

Revenue
esGCtudedfromtix

under eectloru
512-614

S5

1

la

b
0

d
e

f

9
h

la
lb
1o

Id

Federated campaigns . . .
Membership duos . . . .
Fund raising events . .. :i
Related organizations . . .
Oovemment grants (contribution^
All other contrliutlorB, gins, grants,
and dmllar amounts not IncjudKl fltnve

Nonosh coritJtwtlons Included In Ones
Total. Add lines 1a-1f

1e

If

256,566

57,716

2a

b
c

d
0

f
9

All other program service revenue.
Total. Add lines 2e-2f ^

Buiinees Cede
314,282.

356,833
356,833.

356,833, 0. 0.

4
5

6a
b

c

d
78

c

d

6a

Investment income (Including dividends. Interest,
and other similar amounts) ^
Income from investment of tax-exempt bond proceeds b*
Royalties ^

77

Gross rents . .
Less: rental expenses
Rental Income or (bs^
Net rental Income or
Gnas amount from sales of
assets other than Inventny
Less; cost or other basis
and sales expenses
Gain or (loss} . .
Net gain or Ooss)

ORoil 00

lOS^
QSoourltin OQ Other

il

0.

Gross Income from fundraistng
events (not Including $

c

9a

b
c

10a

b

c

of contributions reported on line 1c).
See Part IV, line 18 q
Less: direct expenses . . . . b
Net Income or (loss) from fundrslslng events
Gross Income from gaming activities.
See Part IV, line 19 g
Less: direct expenses . . . . b
Net Income or goss) from gaming activities .
Gross sales of Inventory, less
returns and allowances . . . a
Less: cost of goods sold . . . b
Net Income or Qoss) from sales of Inventory .

77

Mtecaltaneout Ravanu*

11a

b

c

d

e

12

Pu»tnwi Cod*

AO Other revenue
Total. Add lines 11e>11d ^
Total revenue. See instructions b> 671,192 356,833. 0. 77.

REvoonznopRO Form 090 (2017)



Pomi 900 (2017)

Pni t IX Statement of Functional Expenses
Pbqs 10

Section 501 (cX3) and 501(c)(4) organizations must complete all coiumnx AU other o/gan/zaltons must compMe column (A).

Do not btdudo amounts reported on lines 6b, 7b,
8b, 9b, and 10b of Part VIIL

(A)
Totnl sgMntM

(B)
Prof^Bm awvio*

•xp«n*M

(C)
Mmteinient end
oerwrBl «xp«nM>

Fun^sing
BSaMflMt

1  (^artts and olhor assistance to domestic or^lzatlons
and domestic governments. See Part IV. line 21 . .

2 Oents and other aaeistance to domestic

indMduala. See Part IV. line 22

3  Grants and other assistance to foreign
otganliaUona, foreign oovemments. and foreign
Indlvfduals. SeePartIV, lineelSandlS . . .

4  Benefits paid to or for members . . . .
6  Companion of current ofncers, directors,

trustees, and key employees . .

6  Compensation not induded above, to dsquafffled
persons (as defined under section 4958(rK1)) and
persons described In section 49S6(c)(3)(B) . .

7  Other salaries and wages
8  Pension plan accruals end corrtrlbutions Qnctude

section 401 (14 and 403(b) employer contributions)

9  Other employee beneftte . . . . ̂
10 Payroll taxes

11 Fees for eervioee (non-employees):
a Management . . .. . . .

r
l:

1

■

f

1

71,133. 71,133. 0. 0.

309.709. 264,060. 45.649. 0.

28,815. 25,361. 3,454. 0.

b Legal . . . .. . ;
0 Accounting . .. ...

d Lobtiylng . . ..v, . . ... . . v.
e FYofessionalkincfrdsing services. See Part IV, One 17

f  Investment management fees
0 Other. (If Ire 11g amount excseds 10% of line 25, cdurm

(A) aneuntistllnsllg expenses on ScfeduleO.) . .
12 Advertising and promotion . ii
13 Office expenses . . .v- . :i v i v

14 Information technology j.; .. .. .

50. 0. 50. 0.

16,668. 15,106. 1,562. 0.

1  i " ■ ■ ,-'f

382. 234. 148. 0.

3,669. 1,786. 1,883. 0.

604 . 496. 108. 0.
15 Royattlee

16 Occupancy
17 Travel . .. .
18 Payments of travel or entertainment expenses

for any federal, state, or local public officials

19 Conferences, conventlona, and meetings
20 Interest r.

21 Payments to affDIates •;

22 Depredation, depletion, and amortization .

23 Insurance

24 Other expenses. Itemize expenses not covered
above (Lid miscellaneous expenses In lire 24e. If
line 24a amount CD^eeds 10% of Dne 25, column
(A) amount, list fine 24e expenses on Schedule 0.)

a Program Expenses

43,396. 34,725. B,671. 0.

19,887. 18,011. 1,876. 0.

-

4,899. 0. 4,899. 0.

39,616. 39,616. 0. 0.

!  ' ̂

r

^  i
1

1

"  ; !
s

f

i
77,611. 76,933. 678. 0.

b Interpreter Fees 55,170. 55,170. 0. 0.
c Printing and Publications 1,049. 862. 187. 0.
d  ,^nd Raising Expense 7,299. 1,755. 0. 5,544.
e All other expenses 39,009. 32,888. 6,121. 0.

25 Total functional expenses. Add lines 1 through 24e 718,966. 638,136. 75,286. 5,544.
28 Joint costs. Complete this line only If the

organization reported In column (B) Joint costs
from a combined educational campaign and
fundraislng sollcitaticn. Check here P- □ if
foBovdng SOP 98-2 (ASC955-720) . . . .

R£V0V12n«PRO Fonri 090 (2017)



Form 990 p017) PtQaM
Balance Sheet

Check tf Schedule 0 contains a response or note to any line in this Part X □
(A)

Beginning of year
(B)

End of year
1  Cash^non-lnterest-b^ng . . . .
2  Savtngs and temporary cash Investments
3  Pledgee and grants receivable, net . .
4  Accounts recefvabte. net
5  Loans and other receivables from current and former officers, directors,

trustees, key employees. ervJ highest compensated employees.
Complete Part D of Schedule L

6  Loans and other receivables from other disqualified persons ̂  defined uxler aactlon
49560X1)), persons dsscrbed h section 49^c){3KQ, and contributing employere end
spon^ng organizations of section 501(e)(Q voluntary employees' beneficiary
organlZBtions (see hstruction^ Complete Part II of Schedule L . .. .. ...

7  Notes and loans receivable, r>et . . . .
B  Inventories for sale or use - . v: ;• i-. ;
9  Prepaid expenses and deferred charges

10a Land, buildtngs, and equipment cost or
other basis. Complete Part VI of Schedule D

b Less: accumulated depreciation . . . .
11 Investments—publicly traded aecurtties
12 Investments—other securities. See PartIV, line 11 .
13 Investrrrents—prograrh-related.SeePartlV.llnell:.:. ..
14 Intangible assets .
15 Other assets. See Part IV, line 11 r;
16 Total assets. Add llrtes 1 through 15 (must equal line 34)

10a

10b
78,525.
67 338

218,092. 205,692

47,343. 25,155.
40,906. 24,156.

8,923 8,167

t
14,259. 10c 11,187

11

12
13

14

15
329,523 16 274,357.

I

ra
3'

17

18

19

20
21

22

23

24

25

26

Accounts payable arto accrued expenses
Grants payable
Deferred revenue
Tax-exempt bond liabilities
Escrow or custodial account liability. Complete Part IV of Schedule D .
Loans and other payables to cunent and former officers, directors,
trustees, key employees, highest compensated employees, and
disqualified persons. Complete Pert 0 of Schedule L-
Secured mortgages and notes payable to unrelated third parties . .
Unsecured notes and loans payable to unrelated third parties . . .
Other liabilities Oncluding federal Income tax. payables to related third
parties, and other liabilities not Included on lines 17-24). Complete Part X
ofSch^uleD
Total liablDtles. Add lines 17 through 25

45,137 17 37,745.
18

19

20
21

u
22

23
24

25
45,137. 28 37,745.

%

Organlzation«toatfoBowSFAS117(ASC958),checkhere>> g) and
complete lines 27 through 29, and Ones 33 and 34.

27 Unrestricted net assets
28 Temporarily restocted net assets ; V; ,v. .
29 Permanently restricted net assets •

Organlz8tkm8thatdonotfoUow8FA8117(ASC959,checkhere^ Q and
complete Dnes SO through 34.

30 Capital stock or trust princlpaJ, or current furtds ^.
31 Paid-lnorcaprtalsurplus, or land, building, or equipment fund . .
32 Retained earnings, endowment, accumulated Income, or other funds .
33 Total net assets or furuj balances
34 Total liabilities arto net assets/fund balances

284,.386. 27 236,612.
28

29

(M&m

30

31
32

284,386. 33 236,612.
329,523. 34 274,357.

Fonn 990(2017)
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Form 990 (2017)

Pail XI ReconcUlBtlon of Net Assets
p^12

1  Total revenue (must equal Part Vlll, column (A), lino 12) ;
2  Total expenses (must equal Part IX, column (A), Bne 25) .
3  Revenue less expenses. Subtract One 2 from One 1 .
4  Net assets or fund balances at beginning of year (must equal Part X line 33, column (A)). v.
6  Net unrealized gains Oosses) on investments ; . r, . ; . . . •.. / .i :- : . .
6  Donated services and use of faculties . . ... . . i;

7  Investment expenses .

8  Prior period adjustments ; ^ .
9  Other changes In net assets or fund balances (explain In Schedule 0) . . . ... ..
10 Net assets or fund balances at end of year. Combine Ones 3 throu^ 9 (must ̂ ual Pert X Bne

33, column (B))

1 671.192.

2 718.966.

8 -47.774.

4 284..'JBfi.

6

8

.7

8

9

10 236.612.
Hnanciai statements and Reporting

3a

Check If Schedule 0 contains a response or note to any line h this Part XII Q

2a

Accounting method used to prepare the Form 990: □ Cash SlAccrual Dother
If the organization changed te method of accounting from a prior year or checked 'Other,* explain in
Schedule O.

Were the organtzatlon'e financial Statements compiled or reviewed by an independent accountant? . . ,
if "Yes," check a box below to indicate whether the finandai statements for the year were compiled or
reviewed on a separate basis, consoOdated basis, or both:
□ Separate basis □ Consolidated basis □ Both consolidated and separate basis
Were the organization's financial statements audited by an independent accountant?
If *Y6s,' check a box below to indicate whether the financial statements for the year were audited on a
separate basis, consolkJatad basis, or both:
S S^aarate basis D Consolidated basis D Both consolidated and separate basis
If "Yes" to line 2a or 2b, does the organization have a committee that assumes responsibility for oversight
of the audit, review, or compilation of Its financial statements and selection of an Independent accountant?
If the organization changed either Its oversight process or selection process during the tax year, explain In
Schedule O.
As a result of a federal award, was the organization required to undergo an audit or audits as set forth in
the Single Audi! Act and 0MB Circular A-1337
If "Yes," did the organlzatlcn undergo the required audit or audits? If the organization did not undergo the
required audit or audits, explain why in Schedule 0 and describe any steps taken to undergo such audits.

2a

2b

2c

3a

3b

Yw Nq

r  1
•  i

ir

I  '

Fom 990(2017)
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SCHEDULE A

(Form 890 or 89&€9

DqanriMnt of tfw Treeitvy
Inlinml Rflwnut Gtnfc*

Public Charity Status and Public Support
Ogwpirt»tfft»crjniMltaibawcBongOt(cWofpa)<aBonort wcacnW7(i^iiopmniplduilu&ltO«il

► Attach to Fonn 990 or Form 000-EZ.
►QotDiyMnrJxffw/FomiOaOfarlnrtnicthwttmdthotetaitlnforTnaltau

0MB No. 1945-0047

!®17

Name of ttw orgaidisBon

Northeast Deaf & Hard of Hearing Services

Open to Putilic
Inspoclion

Envloyar Uantlftoattoo nuoAMr

02-0517861amiMa Reason for Public Chartty Status (Alt organizations must compiete this part.) See Instructions.
The organtzation is nd a private foundation because It is: (For Unes 1 through 12, check only one box^

1 Da church, convention of churches, or association of churches described In eoctlon 170(b)(1KA)(l).
2 Da school described in section 170(b)fl)lAHn). (Attach ScheduteE (Form 990 or 990-E2).)
3 Da hospital or a cooperative hospital eerylce organization described In section 170(b)(1HA)(no.
4 □ A medical research organization operated in cofijunctlon with a hospital described In eecrtlon 170(b)(1)(A)(IlI). Enter the

hospital's name, dty, and state:
6 □ An organization operated for the benefit of a coilege or university owned or*opereted ̂  a go^^mental uni[t*d(»^M* in

section 170(b)(1KA)(lv). (Compiste Part II.)
6 □ A federtd, state, or local government or governmental unR described In section 170foH1)(A)(v)'
7  IS An organization that normally receivee a 6ut>stantlal part of Its support from a govemrnental unR or from the general public

described in section 170fo)(1)(A)M). (Complete Part II.)
6 Da community trust deecrttted in eection 170fo)(1](A)(vl). (Complete Part li.)
9 □ An agricultural research organization described In section 170tb)(1)(A){b4 operated In conjunction wrth a land-grant college

or universfty or a noo-land-grant ooHege of agriculture (see Instructions). Enter the name, clly, and state of the college or
university:

10 □ An oraaniziBon that hormally receK?eir(l)lrT>bre than 33'/3%*onS^pofrfroiTvcorrfirlBuflohT*rner^^
receipts from activities relatM to Its exempt functions—subject to certain exceptions, and (2) no more than 33^/3% of to
support from gross Investment Income and unrelated business taxable Income (less section 511 from businesses
acquired by the organization after June 30,1975. See section 509(a)(2). (Complete Part 111.)

11 □ An organization organized and operated exclusively to test for public saf^. See section 50e(a)(4).
12 □ An organization organized and operated exduslvety for the benefR of, to perform the functions of, or to carry out the purposes

of one or more puUlciy supported organizations described In section 609fo)(1) or eection 609(aK2). See section 509(a)(9.
Check the box In Unes 12attirough12dth8t describes the type of supporting organization and complete lines 12e, 12f, and 12g.

*0 ', □ Type I. A supporting organization <^>erated, supervised, or controlled by to supported organization(^, typically by giving
the supported organizatlon(s) the power to regutarty appoint or elect a majority of the directors or trustees of the
supporting organization. You must compiete Part IV, Sections A and B.

b □ Type n. A supporting organization supervised or controlied in connection with to supported organlzation(8), by having
control or management of the suF^xxtlng organization vested In the same persons that control or manage the supported
organization(s). You must complete Part IV, Sections A artd C.

c □ Type m functionally integrated. A supporting organization operated In cormecUon wtth, and functionally Integrated with,
to supported organlzation(8) (see Instnjctions). You must complete Part IV, Sections A, D, and E.

d □ Type III non-functlonally Integrated. A supporting organization operated in connection with to supported organlzation(s)
that Is not functionally jntegrated. The organization generally must satisfy a distribution requirement and an attentlveness
requirement (see lnstr\xRlons). You must complete Part IV, Sections A and D, and Part V,

e □ Check this box If the organization received a written determination from the IRS that R Is a Type I, Type II, Type m
functionally Integrated, or Type III non-functlonally Integrated supporting orgenization.

f  Enter the number of supported organizations |

(1) rtene of •upported organtzatfen 09 BN P) type of organlzattcn
(described on Ines 1-10
above (sM Insbuctfon^l

54 k tha orpanfeatloo
IsM in your oownkio

documant?

(4 Amount of menatsy
auppen(aae
Instructions)

M) Amount of
odter support (aaa

InstrucUonti

Yes No

(A)

(B)

(C)

P)

(E)

Total 1  • • 1  ..
-

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructfona for Form 980 or 990-EZ. bAA Schedtjfe A (Form SBO or seo-EZ) 2017
REvosnznsPRO



8ohedule A (Fbnn 990 or WO-EZ) 2017

Support Schedule for OrsanlzaUons Described (n Sections 170(b)(1)(A)(lv) and 170[b)(1)(A)(vOPnrt II

p^2

(Complete only If you checked the box on Dne 6,7, or 8 of Part I orif the organization failed to qualify under
Part 111. If the organization fails to qualify under the tests listed below, please complete Part III.)

Section A. Public Support
Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning In) >■

1  Gifts, grants, contributions, and
membership fees received. (Do not
indudeany "unusual grants. "0 . . .

2  Tex revenues levied for the
organization's benefit and either paid
to or expended on Its behalf . . .

3  The value of services or feclllties
furnished by a governmental unit to the
organization without charge . . . .

4  Total. Add lines 1 through 3. . . .
6  The portion of total contributions by

each person (other than a
governmental unit or publicly
supported organization) included on
line 1 that exceeds 2% of the amount
shown on line 11, column (Q . . . .

6  PubOc support Subtract line 5 from line 4

(a) 2013 <b)2014 <0)2015 (d)2016 (el 2017 dl Total

365,608. 346,990. 442,293. 471,812. 1,626,703.

365,608. 346,990. 442,293. 471,812. 1, 626,703.
1

1

.. 1
- • 1

1
1

1

;  1

1

1
1

1

I  '
1
'

1

1

1

1

t

t  ,

1

.  -. j
1

-— li ,j ,  iu. • 1 !  -J 1,626,703..
Section B. Total Support
Cftlendafye8r(orflsoalyBarbe9lnninoln) ^

7  Amounts from Dne 4

6  Gross Income from Interest, dividends,
payments received on securities loans,
rents, royalties, and Income from
simOar sources

9  Net Income fnxn unrelated business
activities, whether or not the business
Is regularly carried on

10 Other Income. Do not Include gain or
loss from the sale of capital assets
Explain In Part VI.)

11 Total aupport Add lines 7 through 10

(a) 2013 (b)2014 <c) 2015 (d)2016 (el 2017 (f) Total
365,608. 346,990. 442,293. 471,812. 1,626,703.

20. 46. 30. 43. 139.

14,061. 15,917. 16,985. 14,867. 61,830.
- ■

• r  -V • :1,688,672.
Gross receipts from related activities, etc. (see Instructions) 12

13 First five years. If the Form 990 Is for the organization's first, second, third, fourth, or frflh tax year as a section 501(c)(3)
organization, tfieck this box and stop here . ► Q

Section 0. Computation of Public Support Percentage
14

15
16a

17e

14
15

96.33%
96.3 %

18

Public support percentage for 2017 (line 6. column (f) divided by line 11, column (f)) . . . .
Public support percentage from 2016 Schedule A, Part 11, line 14
33^/1% aupport te8t-2017. If the organization did not check the box on line 13. and line 14 Is 33^/3% or more, check this
box and atop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization p-
33^/3% aupport te8t-2016. If the organization did not check a box on Dne 13 or 16a. and line 15 is 33^/3% or more, check
this box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization >■
10%-toct»«nd-circumstances test-2017. If the organlzBtk>n did not check a box on line 13,16a, or 16b, end dne 14 is
10% or more, and If the organization meets the "fects-enc^rcumstances' test, check this box and stop here. Explain In
Part VI how the organization meets the "facts-and-drcumstances' test The organization qualifies as a publlcfy supported
organization p-

10%-fact8-arMi-clrcum8tance8 test—2016. If the organization did not check a box on line 13,16a, 16b. or 17a, ar>d line
15 Is 10% or more, and if the organization meets the "lacts-and-circumstances" test, check this box and stop here.
Explain in Part VI how the organization meets the lacts-and-drcumstances" test. The orgar^lzatlon qualifies as a publlcfy
supported organization >
Private foundatloa If the organization did not d>eck a box on line 13,16a. 16b. 17a, or 17b, check this box and see
Instfuctions ►

□

□

□

 a
SchMhito A (Fonn 990 or eeO-EZ) 2017
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SchKluto A (Form flOO or 09&«Z) 2017

Pnr1 III

P««3
Support Schedule for Organizations Described in Section 609{ai{^
(Complelo only If you checked the box on line 10 of Part I or If the organization failed to qualify under Part II.
If the organization fails to qualify under the tests listed below, please complete Part II.)

Section A. Public Support

Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning In) b-
1  Qtfts, gran^ contributions, erKl membership fees

received. (Po not indude any "unususf orBnts.*)
2  Qross receipts from admissions, merchandise

sold or services performed, or facilities
funded in any ectl^ that is rotated to the
organization's taxrexernpt purpose . . .

3  Gross receipts from activities that are not an
unrelatad trade or business tiMlar section 513

4  Tax revenues levied for the

orgardzatlon's benefit and either paid to
or expended on its behalf . . . .

5  The value of eervicea or facilttlee

furnished a govemmente) unit to tt>e
organization wlttwut charge. . . .

6  Total. Add tines 1 through 5. . . .
7a Amounts Included on Bnes 1, 2, and 3

received from disqualified persons

b Arrxxints included on lines 2 and 3

received from other than disqualified
persons that exceed the greater of '$S,0(X)
or 1 % of tt>e amount on Hne 13 for the year

0 Add lines 7a and 7b

8  Public support (Subtract line 7c from
Dno6.)

(a) 2013 Q))2014 (c)201S (d)2016 {e)2017 ff) Total

c
-

;  ■■ "I
1  ..j- - 1 L"'- 'j

i  1

Section B. Total Support

Calendar year (or flacal year beginning In)
0  Amounts from line 6

10a Qross Income from intarest, dividends,
payments received on eecurfties loans, rents,
royalties, and Income from sln^ar sources .

b Unrelated business taxable Income Qess
section 51.1 taxes) from businesses
acquired after June 1975 . . . .

c Add lines 10a end 10b

11 Nat income from unrelatad business

actlvtties not Included in line 10b. wtiether

or not the business is regularly carried on

12 Other Income. Do not include gain or
loss from the sale of capital assets
(Explain In Part VI.) . . . . .

13 Total support (Add lines 9. 10c, 11,
and 12.)

(0)2013 [b)2014 (c)2015 {d}2016 (e}2017 tf) Total

14 First five years. If the Form 990 Is for the organlzation'a first, second, third, fourth, or fifth tax yes
organization, check this box and stop here

r as a section 501 (c)(3)

Section c. Computatton of Public Support Percentage

15 Public support percentage for 2017 (line 8, column (0 divided by line 13, column (1))
16 Publlc8upportE>ercentaqefrom2016ScheduleA.Partill.llne15

15 %

16 %
Section D. Coniputation of Investment Income Percentage
17 Investment Income percentage for 2017 Oine 1 Co, column (f) divided by line 13. column (Q) . . .
18 Investment Incomepercentegefrom2018ScheduieA,Parllll, Dne 17

17 %

18 %

20

17 is not more than 33^/3%, check this box and stop here. The organization quaTrfies as a publidy supported organization b Q
33^/1% support teet8-2016. If the organization did not check a box on One 14 or One 19a, and line 15 is more than 33^/3K, and
Dne18bnotmorethEn33^/3%,checkthtsboxandstophere.TheorQanizationquallfle3asapubnclysupportedorganlzat)on ► Q
Private foundation. If the oroanlzation did not check a box on line 14.19a. or 19b. check this box and see instructions ► □

REVoenyiSPRO Schadul«A(PennMOoreeo>Q)2017



Sdiodute A (Fbnn 090 or 990-EZ) 2017

Pnrt IV

Pm*4
Supporting Organizations
(Completd only If you checked a box in line 12 on Part I. If you checked 12a of Part I, complete Sections A
and B. If you checked 12b of Part I, complete Sections A and C. If you checked 12c of Part I. complete
Sections A. D. and E. If you checked 12d of Part I, complete Sections A and D. and completa Part V.)

Section A. All Supporting Organizations

1  Are all of the organization's supported organizations Dsted by name In the organization's goverr^ng
documents? tf 'No,' describe in W how the supported orger^zadons ere designated. If designated by
ciassorpurpose, describe the deslgn^ion. if historic arxicontinutngrBl&VonsNp, explain.

2  Did the organization have any supported organization that does not have an IRS determination of status
under section 509(a)(1) or (2)? If "Yes,'explain In Part W how the organbstlon determined that the supported
organlation was described In section S0$(a)(1) or 0.

3a Did the organization have a supports organization described In eection 501 (c)(4), (5), or (6)7 If 'Ves,' answer
end below.

b Did the organization confirm that each supported organization qualified under section 501 (<^(4), (5), or (6) and
satisfied the public support tests under section 509(a)p)? tf "yes,' describe In Part Vt when and how the
organtZBtion made the detwnlnatlon.

c Did the organization ensure that ail support to such organtzaUons was used exclusively for section 170(c)(2)(B)
purpo8e37ff "Yes,'epg^ in Part VI what contmis the ofgantatton put in place to ensure such use.

4a Was any supported organization not organized In the United States (foreign supported organization")? if
"yes,'aid tf you ched^ 12a or 12b In Part I, answer Oj) end (c)beiow.

b Did the organizalion have ultimate control and discretion in deciding whether to make grants to the foreign
supported organization? if "/es," describe In Part VI how the organization had such control end discretion
despite being controlled or. supervised by or in connection with Its supported organizations.

c Did the organization support any foreign supported organization that does not have an IRS determination
under sections 501 (c)(3) and 509(a)(1) or (2)? If 'Yes.' explain In Part VI what controls the organization used
to ensure thd all support to the tore^ supported organization was used exdusiveiy for section 170(c)^)(B)
purposes.

5a Did the organization add, sutjstitute, or remove any supported organizations during the tax year? tf *yes/
answer (bj end (c) below (V ̂ pp/iceb/ql. Also, provide detail In Part VI. Mudlng (9 the names and BN
numbers of the supported otgardzations added, substituted, or removed; (Ji) the reasons for each such action;
(7/0 the authority under the organlzBtion's organizing dbcument authorizing such action: and (1^ how the action
was accomp//shed (such as by amendment to fhe organizing document).

b Type I or TVpe 11 only. Was any added or substituted supported organization part of a already
designated In the organkation's organizing document?

c Substttutfons only. Was the substitution the result of an event beyond the oiganization's control?
6  Did the organization provide support (whether In the form of grants or the provision of services or facliftlas) to

anyone other than (I) Its supported organizations, (li) IndivldLials that are pert of the charitable class beneflted
by one or more of Its su^^ded organizations, or (ill) other supporting organizations that also support or
beneftt one or more of the filing organization's supported organizations? If Tes,' proUde detail In Part VI.

7  Did the organization provide a grant, loan, compensation, or other sbniiar payment to e sut>stantiai contributor
(defined In section 4956(c)(3)(C)), a family member of a 6ut>stantial contributor, or a 35% controlled entity with
regard to a substantial contributor? tf "Ves,' complete Part I of Schedule L (Fbrni 990 or990-EZ).

8  Did the organlzBtion make a loan to e disqualified person (as defined In section 4956) not described In line 7?
tf 'Yes,'complete Part I of Schedule L ̂orm 990 or 990-E2:).

9a Was the organization contrdled directly or IndlfMtly at any time during the tax year by one or more
disqualified persons as defined in section 4946 (other than foundation managers and org^lzations describikJ
In section 509(a)(1) or (2))? If 'Yes,'provide detail In Part VL

b Did one or more dIsqCiaiifled persons (as d^ned in line 9a) hold a controlling Interest in any entity In which
the supporting organization had an interest? tf Tes,' prc^de dotaO In Pert VL

c Did a disqualified person (as defined In line 9a) have an ownership Interest in, or derive any personal benefit
from, ass^ in which the supporting organization also had an Interest?/f "Ves,"pmvfoe<fofa///n Part M.

10a Was the organization subject to the excess business holdings rules of section 4943 because of section
4943(0 (regarding certain Type 11 supporting organizations, and all Type III non-functionaliy Integrated
supping organizations)? If "Ves," answer 10b b^ow.

b Did the organization have any excess business holdings In the tax year? (Use Schedule C, Form 4720, to
determine whether the organization had excess business holdings.)

Yes No

-

. H
1

j

2

. 1  1
3a

r
- 1-'

!  ./
3b

i  ' .  1
So

I. . i'-

4a

1 t- L

4b

I

t- '

■  1

t  '■}

i

4c
I  f

'  ■'!

5a

\

6b'
5o

j

1

r ' •

i

i

6
♦- - ̂

: 'jI  - i
■  TTJ

1  -t

!, _

7

i  1
8

'i ,J
9a.

I J
9b

t

t—.J
9c

t '  J

10a

.

>

10b

f )

ScMuto A (Ponn wo or 990.EZ} 2017
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Pfiit IV Supporting Organizations fconfrnuecO

11 Has the organization accepted a gift or contribution from any of the folioviring persons?
a A person who directly or Indirectly controls, either alone or together with persons described in (b) and (c)

below, the governing body of a supported organization?

b A family member of a person described In (eO above?
c A 35% controlled entity of a person described in fa) or fb) above? ff "Yes'to a b. ore, provide detaHinPart VI.

Yes No

tJ
lie

lib

11c
Section B. Type I Supportinfl Organizatlona

Dkj the directors, trustees, or membership of one or more supported organizatkMis have the power to
regularly appoint or elect at least a ma}or^ of the organlzatkm's directors or trustees at all times during the
\axy9sj7 tf'No.'describe In Part Vt how the supportodorganlzatiorisfeffxttvetyopeintBd, supen/isod. or
cofttrolled the organization's ectMtfee. If the organization had more one supported organization,
describe how the powers to appoint and/or remove directors or trustees were elhcated among the supported
organizations end v^iat coTKiitions or restiictlons. Ifany, afHiHod to such powers during the tax year.

Did the organization operate for the ber>eflt of any eupported orgar^lzatlon other than the supported
organizatlort(8) that operated, supervised, or controlled the supporting organization? If 'Yes,'explain In Part
W how pmvk^ such benefit carrted out the purposes of the supported organ/zatfonC^ that operated,

!  I

Yes No

Section C. Type 11 Supporting Organizations

Yes No
1  Were a majority of the organization's directors or trustees during the tax year also a majority of the directors

or trustees of each of the organization's supported organizationfs)? If flo,' describe In Pert W how control
or management of. the supporting organization was vested in the same persons that controlled or managed
the supported organlzation(s).

-  "-f

!  1

,1 I
1

section D. All Type 111 Supporting Organizations

1  Did the organization provide to each of Its supported organlzalicns, by the last day of the fifth month of the
organization's tax year, 0) a written notice deeding the type and amount of support provided during the prior tax
year, (II) a copy of the Form 990 that was most recently filed as of the date of notification, arxl (ID) copies of the
organization's governing documents In effect on the date of notification, to the extent not previously provided?

2 Were any of the organization's officers, directors, or trustees either (1) appointed or elected by the supported
organlzatlon(8) or (II) serving on the governing body of a supported organization? If 'No,'explain In Part VI how
the organization maintained a dose and condhuous woridng relatlondiip with the supported organizationfs).

3 ^ reason of the relationship described in (^, did the organization's supported organizations have a
s^lficant voice In the organization's Investment policlas and in directing the use of the organlzatibn's
Income or assets at aD times during the tax yeaT7tf'Yes,'dascribe In Part VI the role the orf^riization's
sig>ported organlzBtions played In tttis regard.

Yes No

1

:  1
1

•

1

u
2

i

1 ,

1  -f

\

'  .

3
Section E. Type IH Functtonaliy tntegrBted Supporting OrBanizatlons

bistmctions).1  Check the box next to the method that the orgahtatldn used to satisfy the Iritegral Part Test during the year (i
a □ The organization satisfied the Activities Test Complete line 2 below.
b □ The organization is the parent of each of its supported orger^izations. Complete tine S below.
c □ The organization supported a governmental eritfty. Disscribe In Part W how you supported a govemrrwtt entity (see Instructions).

2  Activities Test. Anst^sr and (bj befoiv.
a Old substantially all of the organization's activities during the tax year'directly further the exempt purposes of

the suppoiled brganlzatlbh(^ to which the organization was responsive? If "yes," then In Part VI Menttfy
those supported orgahhatiena arid explain fidw these octMties directly furthered tfieb exempt purposes;
how the organization was responsive to those supportwi o/gantzatfons, arrd how the or^nization determined
that these activities constituted substaritially ail of Its activities.

b Did the activities described in (a) constitute activities that, but for the organization's invotvemsnt. one or more
of the organization's supported organization(s) would have been engaged In? If Tes,' explain In Part VI the
reasons for the organization's position that Its supported organization^ would have engaged in these
actMties but for the organization's Involverrieht

3  Parent of Supported O^anizations.AnaMrer^aierK'tbi Mow.
o Did the organization have the power to regularty appoint or elect a majority of the officers, dIrectorB, or

trustees of each of the supported organizations? Provide details in Part VI.
b Did the organization exercise a substantial degree of direction over the policies, programs, and activities of each

of Its supported orBantzations? If yes." describe In Part VI the role played by the organlzatioh In this regard.

Yes No
1

1  . i j " .
2a

f  I
'  1

.  !i
|. -

2b
t.-l —^

i.

<r

3a

1

rl
1

3b

1 1
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Schadid* A (Fomi 990 or SOO-EZ) 2017

Pnrt V

Pioe6
Type III Non»Functlonally Integrated 509(a)(3) Supporting Oraanlzatlons

□ Check here If the organization satisfied the tntegret Part Test as a qualifying trxist on Nov. 20,1970 (explain In Part VI). See

Sectkm A - Adjusted Net Income (A) Prior Year (B) Current Year
(optional)

1 Net short-term capltal gain 1
2 Recoveries of prfor-vear distributions 2
3 Other gross income (see instructions) 3

4 Add lines 1 through 3. 4
5 Depredation and depletion 5

6 Portion of operating expenses paid or incurred for productlDn or
collection of gross income or for management, conservation, or
maintenance of property held for production of Income (see Instnjctfons) 6

7 Other expenses (see instructions) 7
8 Adjusted Net Income (subtract lines 6, 6, and 7 from line 4). a

Section B - Minimum Asset Amount (A) Prior Year (B) Current Year
(optionaO

1 Aggregate fair market value of all n on-exempt-use assets (see
Instructions for short tax year or assets held fv part of year):

1 !
a Average monthly value of securities 1e •

b Averaoe monthly cash balances lb
c Fair market value of other non-exempt-use assets 1c
d Total (add lines la, 1b. end 1c) Id -

e Discount claimed for bfockage or other
tactors (explain in detail in Part Vl): L

2 Acquisition Inddstedness applicable to norv-exempt-use assets 2

3 Subtract line 2 from line 1d. 3

4 Cash deemed held for exempt use. Enter 1-1/296 of line 3 (for greater amount,
see instructions). 4

5 Net value of non-exempt-use assets (sut)tract line 4 from line 3) 5
6 Multiply line 5 by .035. 6

7 Recoveries of prior-year distrfbutlona 7
B Minimum Asset Amount (add line 7 to line 6) a

Section C - Dlstrfbutsble Amount r"~ ■ 1 Current Year

1 Adjusted net Income for prior year (from Section A. line 6, Column A) 1 1

2EnterB596ofline1. 2 .

3 Minimum asset annount for prior year (from Section B, line 8. Column A) 3 :  (
4 Enter greater of line 2 or line 3. 4 1

5 Income tax Imposed In prior year 6 .1
6 Distributable Amount. Subtract Pne 5 from line 4, unless sub^ to
emergency temporary reduction (see instructions). 6

1
!  _ .. 1

instructtons).
Schodult A (Fonn 990 or 9eO-E2) 2017
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8c^ed\A A (Form 000 or 890-^ 2017

Pni-t V

p^7

Type III Non*Functlonany Integrated 509(a)(^ Supporting Organizations (continuec^

Section D - Distributions Current Year

1  Amounts paid to supported ofganlzatlons to acoompllsh exempt purposes

Amounts paid to perform actlvfty that directty furthers exempt purposes of supported
orpanlzatfons, In excess of Income from activfty

3 Administrative expenses paid to accomplish exempt purposes of supported organizations
4 Amounts paid to acquire exempt-use assets

6 Qualified set-aside amounts (prior IRS approval required)

6 Other distributions (describe tn Part Vl). See Instructions.

7 Totai armual distrBKitioTts. Add lines 1 through 6.

6 Distributions to attentive supported organtzBtlons to which the organtzatton Is responsive
(provide details In Part VI). instructions.

9 Distributable amount for 2017 from Section C. line 6

10 Line B amount divided by line 9 amount

Section E - Dletrbutfon Allocations (see instructions) (I)
Excess Distributions

01)
UnderdistributioRS

Pre-2017

m
Dlstrftnitable

Amount for 2017

1  Distributable amount for 2017 from Section C, line 6 ' -  ̂ 1

2  Underdlstrtbutions, If any, for years prior to 2017
(reasonable cause required—explain in Part VI). See
Instructions.

t

T

3  Excess distributions carryover, if any. to 2017 I
1
f  • 1

,T- , V-4 -
i. ]• 1  J

b From 2013 1  1 .. .... ... ..... —4

0 From 2014 I  1'  1 J  J
d From 2015 jj ; .  i

e From 201B
1.

i  J 1  i

f  Total of fines 3a through e i' . ' . -J I  . 1

fl Applied to underdlstributlons of prior years
4  - ■ .

r

h Applied to 2017 distributable BnxNjnt i 1  . 1

1  Carryoverfrom 2012 not applied (see instructions) I !  " 1 I  .. I

J  Remainder. Subtract lines 3g, 3h, and 31 from 3f. 1  ̂ 1 - . .,J
4  [^strlbutions for 2017 from

Section D. line 7: $ t

. i!  - ' ; ■ 1

!
a Applied to underdlstributlons of prior years I  ■ 1

b Applied to 2017 distributable amount 1 i. . '

0 Remainder. Subtract lines 4a and 4b from 4.

6  Remaining underdlstributlons for years prior to 2017, If
any. Subtract lines 3g and 4a from tine 2. For result
greater than zero, explain in Pert VI. See instructions.

1

.1
I. L 1

'  , 1
*  .. .f

6  Remaining underdlstributlons for 2017. Sutrtract lines 3h
end 4b from line 1. For result greater than zero, explain in
Part VL Sea instructions.

i  ,

i

7  Excess distributions oairyover to 2018. Add lines 3j
and 4c.

1

1 ... ;  ■ ■ .J
6  Breakdown of Doe 7:

1  ̂

i  -f
a Excess from 2013 . . . 1 i
b Excess from 2014 . . . r , ., , i i. 1
0 Excess from 2015 . . . 1' . - i i  , . ... iL  • • )

d Excess from 2016 . . . 1  - 1 }  ■ - 1

e Excess from 2017 . . . r  - 1 L.— .-1 ,  . i . . ,*"1

Schedite A (Penn see er eeocz) 2017

REVOV12naPRO
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8dwaubA{FomiW0Cf99O-E^2017 Pi^8

Supplemental Infonrnation. Provide ttie explanations required by Part II, line 10; Part II, line 17a or 17b; Part
(II, line 12; Part IV, Section A. lines 1,2,3b, 3c, 4b, 4c, 5a, 6,9a, 9b, 9c, 11a, 11b, and 11c; Part IV, Section
B, Ones 1 and 2; Part fV, Section C, line 1; Part IV, Section D, lines 2 and 3; Part IV, Section E, lines 1c, 2a. 2b.
3a. and Sb; Part V, line 1; Part V, Section B, line 1 e; Pert V, Section D, lines 5,6, and 8; and Part V, Section E,
lines 2,5, and 6. Also complete this part for any additional information. (See Instructions.)

Ft II Ln 10: Other Income Part II, Line 10 Description; Event-Auc^tion 2013;

14061. 2014: 15917. 2015: 16985. 2016: 14867.

REVOBM3/1BPRO ScfMdtto A (Fonn 000 OT MO-EZ) 2017



Schedule B
(Form 990^ eSO-EZ,
or90b^
DMvtmorS of tho TroMtry
IrttamS Rownuo Sonteo

Schedule of Contributors

► Attach to Fonn 990, Form 990-EZ, or Form 990-PF.
► Goto wwwJn^gov/Fonn990 for tho tatMt Inform aHorv

0MB No. 1646-0047

i(0)17
Name of the organtzatkm

Northeast Deaf & Hard of Hearina Services
Employer Montmeatlon number

02-0517861
Organization type (check one);

FDenof:

Form 990 or 990-EZ

Form 990-PF

Section:

S] 501(c)( 3 ) (enter number) organization

□ 4847(a)(1) nonaxempt charttable trust not treated as a private foundation

□ 627 pcDticai organization

□ 501 (c)(3) exempt private fourxJatlon

□ 4947(^(1) nonexemptcharitabletnist treated as a private foundation

D 501 (c)(3) taxable private foundation

Check if your organization is covered by the General Rule or a Special Rule.
Note: Only a aection 501 (c)(7), (8), or (10) organlzatton can check boxes for botti the General Rule and a Spedal Rule. See
Instructlorn.

General Rule

SI For en organization filing Form 990,990-EZ, or 990-PF ttrat received, during the year, corrtributlons totaltr^ $5,000
or more (In money or property) from any one contributor. Complete Parts I end II. See Instructioos for determining :o •
contributor's total contributions.

Special Rules

O For an organization described In section 501 (c)(:^ filing Fomi 990 or 990-EZ that mat the 33Vi% support test of the
regulations under sections 509(a)(1) end 170(b)(1)(A)(vi), that checked Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ). Part II, Une
13,16a. or 16b, and that received from any one contributor, during the year, total contributlora of the greater of (1)
$6,000; or (2) 2% of the amount on (!) Form 990, Pert VIII, line 1 h; or (K) Fdrni 990-EZ, One 1. Complete Parts I end II.

□ For an organization described In section 501 (c)(7), (8), or (10) filing Form 990 or 990-EZ that received from any one.
contributor, during the year, total contributions of more then $1,000 exc/Us/ve»y for religious, charltat)ie, scientific,
literary, or educational purposes, or for the prevention of cruelty to children or animals. Complete Parts I, II, and til.

n For an organization described In section 501(c)(7), (8), or (10) fillr)g Form 990 or 990-EZ that received from any one
contrtt>utor. during the year, contrfbutions exclusively for religious, charitable, etc., purposes, but no such
contributions totaled more than $1,000. If this box is checked, enter here the total contributions that were receivad
durfog the year for an exdusivety religious, charitable, etc., purpose. Don't complete any of the parts ur^lass the
General Rule applies to this organization because it received nonexclusfveiy religious, charitable, etc., contributions
totaling $5,000 or more during the year $

Caution: An organization that Isn't covered by the General Rule and/or the Spedal Rules doesn't file Schedule B (Form 990,
990-EZ, or 990-PF). but It must answer "No" on Part IV. line 2, of Its Form 990; or check the box on line H of its Form 990-EZ or on its
Form 99Q-PF. Part i, line 2, to certify that It doesn't meet the filing requirements of Schedule B (Form 990, 990-EZ. or 990-PF).

For Paparworfc Radudlon Act Notio*, i

BAA

> tho tnceveOono for Form fiOO, SBC-EZ, or seo^.
REV1inyi7PR0

SehodtSi B (Form MO, 980-eZ, or S90-PF) peiT)



Sdiaduit B (Form B90, B90-EZ, or 980-PF) (2017) Paga2
Nime of orgenbeUon

Northeast Deaf & Hard of Hearing Services

Employer IdentMcetton mmibar

02-0517861

Contrlbutore (see instructions). Use duplicate copies of Part I If additional space is needed.

(a)
No.

(b)
Name, address, and ZIP + 4

(c)
Total contributiona

(d)
Type of contribution

Helen M Mozzoni

8 Solitude Lane 5,000

Bridqton ME 04.00.9

Pereon E]

Payroll □
Noncash □

(Complete Pert (I for
ncnoash oontrlbutlom.)

(aO
No.

(b)
Name, address, and ZIP + 4

(c)
Total contributions

(d)
Type of contrQnitlon

Person □
PayroD □
Noncash □

(Complete Part n for
noncash conbibutlone.)

(a)
No.

(b)
Name, eddrese, and ZIP * 4

(c)
Total contribiftione

<d)
TVpe of contribution

Person □
Payroll □
Noncash □

(ComplBte Pert D for
noncash contributions.)

(a)
No.

(b)
Name, addrese, and ZIP 4 4

(c)
Total contributions

(d)
Type of corttrQjutfon

Person □
Payroll □
Noncash □

(Complete Part II for
noncash oontrtbutions.)

(a)
No.

(b)
Name, address, and ZIP 4 4

(c)
Total contributiona

(d)
Type of contribution

Pereon D
Payroll □
Noncash □

(Complete Part II for
noncash contributiona.)

(a)
No.

(b)
Name, address, and ZIP 4 4

(c)
Total contributions

(d)
Type of contribution

Person □
Payroll □
Noncash □

(Complete Pert II for
noncash contributions.)

BAA REvitnanrpRO SetMdte* B (Form 980. eOO-EZ, or SeO-PF) (2017)



SchKiut* B fbrm 890. eOO-EZ. or 890-PF) (2017) Pas* 3
Name of orgenbetlon

Northeast Deaf & Hard of Hearing Services

Employer WefltMcsUon manber

02-0517861

Pnrt II Noncash Property (see Instructions). Use duplicate copies of Part II If additional space Is needed.

(a) No.
from

Pert I

(b)
Description of noncash property given

(c)
FMV (or estimate)
(See Instniotlons4

(d)
Date received

(a) No.
from
Parti

(b)
Deecriptlon of noncash property given

(c)
FMV (or estlmete)
(See (nstruodoRS.)

(d)
Date received

(a) No.
from

Parti

(b)
Description of noncash property given

(c)
FMV (or estimate)
(See Instructions^

(d)
Date received

(a) No.
from

Parti

(b)
Description of noncash property given

(0)
FMV (or estimate)
(See bMtructkms.)

(d)
Date received

(a) No.
from

Parti

(b)
Description of nortcaah property given

(c)
FMV (or estimate)
(See ln«truction»J

(d)
Date received

(s) No.
from

Parti

(b)
Description of noncash property given

(c)
FMV (or estimate)
(See Inetruotions.)

(d)
Date received

BAA R£viinafi7PR0 8ctwdul«B(F:enn0e0,990^orS00-PF) (2017)



ScMul* B (Fom 090.000-EZ, or 880-PF) (2017) p^4
Name of orosnbBtfcKi

Northeast Deaf 6 Hard of Hearing Services

Employer IdentWcellon number

02-0517861

(a) No.
from
Parti

ExtiusMy rellgkHia, ehailtable, ete^ contributions to organliations described In section 601 (o}(7), or
(10) that total more than $1,000 for the year from any one contributor. Complete columns (a) through (e) and
the following line entry. For organizations completing Part III, enter the total of exctusivofy religious, charitable, etc.,
contributions of $1,0(N) or leas for the year. (Enter this Information once. See Instructions.) > $

Use duplicate copies of Part III If additional space Is needed.

(b) Purpose of gift (c) Use of gift (d) Description of how gift Is hsM

(0) Transfer of gift

Trensfaraa's name, addraes, end ZIP 4 Ralallonahip of transferor to tranafbraa

■wto:
from
Parti

(b) Purpose of gift (o) Use of gift (d) Description of how gift Is held

(e) Transfer of gift

Transferee's name, address, and ZIP -i- 4 Relationship of transferor to transferee

Tsnisr
from
Parti

(b) Purpose of gift (c) Use of gift (d) Description of how gift Is held

(e) Transfer of gift

Trsnsforae'e name, address, and ZIP 4 Relstlonship of transferor to transferee

layHoT
froffi
Parti

(b) Purpose of gift (c) Uee of gift (d) Description of how gift Is held

(e) Transfer of gift

Transferee's nsme, address, and ZIP *■ 4 Reistlonshtp of transferor to transferee

BAA REViinan7pR0 Sehsdtis B (Form 900, 900>eZ, or SMVPF) 12017)



SCHEDULE D

(Form 990)

Depertment ol the TNeesy
Intsrral Rennue6Brvloe

Supplemental Rnanclal Statements
►Compiat>lftheofeanlxeti<mafwwared"Yes*onForm990,

PartIV, llneQ,7,6,9,10,11a, 11b, Ho. 11d, 11a, 11f, 12b, or 12b.
PAttaohtoFonn890.

P- Qo to wr¥mJr9.go¥/Fom990 for instruetloitt and tha tatoat brformatlorv

0MB No. 1645-0047

..1017.

Nutw of the eraontaattofl

Northeast Deaf & Hard of Hearinq Services
DiMvyw kNnttflcatan menbef

02-0517861
Pnrt 1 1  Organizations Maintaining Donor Advised Funds or Other Similar Funds or Accounts.

Complete If the organlzatton answered "Yes* on Form 990, Part IV, line 6.
M Donor acMaed fundi M Fundi and other acoounU

1 Total number at end of year
2 Aggregate value of contributions to (during year) -

3 Aggregate value of grants from (during yea^
4 Aggregate value at end of year

Did the organizBtlon Irrfoim all donora and donor advisors In writing that the assets held In donor advised
funds are the organization's property, subject to the organtzation'e exclusive legal control? Q Yes □ No
Did the organization Inform all grantees, donors, and donor advisors in writing that grant funds can be used
only for charitable purposes and not for the benefit of the donor or donor advisor, or for any other purpose
conferring Impermissible private berreftt? Q q

Conwwvotlon Easements. ~
Complete if the orqanlzation answered "Yea* on Form 990, Part IV, line 7.

I  Purpos8(8) of c»reservation easements held by the organization (check all that appi^.
□ Preservation of land for public use (e.g., recreation or education) □ Preservation of a historically important land area
□ Protection of natural habitat □ Preservation of a certified Nstoilc structure
□' Preservation of open space

I  Complete lines 2a through 2d if the organization held a qualified conservation contribution in the form of a conservation
easement on the last day of the tax year.

8 Total number of conservation easements
b Total acreage restricted by conservatfort easements a w- .
c Number of conservation easements on a certified historic structure Irtdudad in (a)
d Number of conservation easements included In (c) acquired after 7/25/06, and not on a

historic structure listed In the NaUorral Register

L-: Held at the End of the Tn Year

2a
2b
2c

2d
Number of conservation eaaar7>enta modified, transferred, released, extinguished, or terminated by the organization during the
tax yearb-
Number of states where property subject to conservation easement Is located
Does tire organization have a written policy regarding the periodic monitoring, insp^ion, handling of
violations, and enforcement of the conservation easements It holds? □ Q
Staff and volunteer hours devoted to monitoring, inspecting, harxllij^ of violations, and enfordng conservation easements during the year

7  Amount of expenses incurred In monitoring. Inspecting, handling of violations, and enforcing conservation easements during the year
► $
Does each conservation easement reported on line 2(d) above satisfy the requirements of section 170(h)(4)(B)(l)
and section 17O0i)(4)(B)(ii)? □ Yes □ No
In Part Xill, describe how the orgar^lzation reports conservation easements In Its revenue and expense statement, end
balance sheet, and irtclude, If applicable, the text of the footnote to the organization's financial statements that describes the
organization's accounting for conservation easements.

Pnrt Ml Organizations Maintaining CoUectfona of Art, Historical Treasures, or Other Similar Assets.
Complete If the orsanization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 8.

la If the organization elected, as permitted urtder SFAS 116 (ASC 958), not to report In Its revenue statement and balance sheet
works of art, historical treasures, or other simitar assets held for public exhibition, education, or research In furtherance of
public service, provide. In Part XIII, the text of the footnote to Its flnar^dal statements that describes these items,

b  If the organization eiected, as permitted under SFAS 116 (ASC 956), to report In Its revenue statement and balance sheet
works of art, historlcaJ treasures, or other simflar assets held for public exhibition, education, or research in furtherance of
public service, provide the followlr>g amounts relating to these items:
(i) Revenue Included on Form 990, Part VIII, line 1 ► $
00 Assets Included in Form 990, Part X ► $

2  If the organization received or held works of art historical treasures, or other similar assets for flnanci^ gain, provide the
fotiowing amounts required to be reported under SFAS 116 (ASC 958) relating to these Items:

a Revenue Included on Form 990, Part VIII, llrw 1 ► $
b Assets Included In Form 990, Part X

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instnjctions for Form 090.
REVOBn^BPRO

Schedule D (Form 900) 2017



SctiocUd D (Fomn 680) 2017 Pi0*2
Orsanteations Maintaining Collections of Art, Historical Treasures, or Other Similar Assets (continued)

3  Using the organization's acquisition, accession, and other records, check any of the following that are e slgntficant use of Its
collection Hems (check all that apply):

a □ Public exhibition d □ Loan or exchange programs
b □ Schdarty research e □ Other
o □ Preservation for future generations

Aj. Provide a description of the organization's collections and explain how they further the organization's exempt purpose In Part
XIIL

6  During the year, did the organization solicit or receive donations of art, historfcai treasures, or other similar
assets to be sokJ to raise funds rather than to be mainlined as part of the organization's conection? . . □ Yes □ No

Part IV Escrow and Custodial Arrangements.
Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 9, or reported an amount on Form
990, Part X. One 21.

la Is the organization an agent, trustee, custodian or other Intermediary for oontrlbutbns or other assets not
included on Form 990, Part X7

b  If *Ye8,* explain the arrangement In Part XIII and compiete the foflowing table:
□ Yes □ No

Amount

c Beginning balance .  :I. i," . . 1c
d Additions during the year . i' v .. . "> : «■ .' >.'• . , id
e Distrttxitions during the year : v .  'V . V • '«* \ . ti . 1o
f Ending balance . •  ̂ ^ 1.'. • .  - .i, -i . . If

2a

b
Pru t V

Did the organization Include an amount on Form 990,Part X'Dne^l.^r escrow or custodial account liability? D Yes □ No
If'Yes.'explain the arranflement In Part XIII. Check here If the explanation has been provided on Part XIII . . . . □

Endowment Funds.

la

b
c

d
■■.t:

1

g
2

a

b
c

3a

Beginrdng of year balance . . .
Contributions
Net Investment earnings, gains, and
losses

Grants or scholarships . . . .
Other expenditures for facHlties and
programs

Administrative expenses . . . .
End of year balance
Provide the estimated percentage of the current year end t>alance (line 1g, column (^) held as:
Board designated or quasl-endowment ► %
Pemnanent endowment ^ %

MCumntyMU' (b) Prior yMT (^ TWo yeert btck |d) Three y«w« bod( (•} Rsur yeve beck

Temporailly restricted endowment > %
The percentages on lines 2a, 2b, and 2c should equal 100%.
Are there endovirment funds not In the possession of the organization that are held and administered for the
organization by:
(i) unrelated organizations v' I- V
(II) related organizations
If "Yes" on line 3a(it), are the related organizations listed as required on Schedule R?;. .. ... ... v. •
Describe In Pert XIII the Intended uses of the organization's endowment funds.

Yes No

EEiilHI

1 3b 1

Part VI Land, Bulldlr>g8, and Equipment

Deecriptlon of property M Coet or other besla
(faweetmerrf)

(b) Coet or other besie
(other)

(c) Accumiieted
depredstion

(d) Bookveiuo

la Land >:
b Buildings
e Leasehold improvements -i
d Equipment ' r.
0 Other

5,765. 1,730. 4,035.
65,004. 58,441. 6,563.
7,756. 7,167. 589.

Total. Add Ones la through 1e. (Co/umn fd) must equa/Form 990, PartX coJUmn/8), f/ne fOc.) ^ 11,187.

BAA REvoonznepRO Sehadiift D (Form 880) 2017



Scheduto D 9^ 980) 2017

P«nrt VII

Pt^3

Investments—Other Securities.

(b) Daserlptlon ol Aoourtty or oatogory
(hdudkig nsme ot aecurtty)

MBookvskM (c) Mstfiod at vSuation:
Co«t or ond-of-year moriCBt vBtus

(1) Ffnanclal derivatives

(2) Closety-held equity interests
(3) Other

W

'"(S)""
(C)

(D)

m

(F)

(G)

(H) ~
Tat8L(Colurnn&fflU3ragua/AyTn99(LPBrfXoof.(E|}in0l2.} h

Port VIM Investments—Program Related.
Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 11c. See Form 990, Part X, line 13.

M Deeortplloo ot hiwertmerit pi) Bookvtiu* (c) htodiod of vBluBtion:
Co«t or •nd-of-ymr rriBrtcst valus

fIJ

m

CT

(4)

m

(B)

(7)

(8)

(9)
TotaL|CDiuiTn|bJ/mef0QU8fFvm99O, F^X cot (BjAwliJ ̂ ;  ■ ■ -. 1 , --5

Pnrt IX Other Assets.

(■) DMcrtptlon M Book value

(1)
(2)
(3)
(4)
(5)
(B)
m
(8)
(8)

Total. (Co/umn (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, col. (B) line 15.) ►
■angy other Liabilities.

Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990. Part iV, line 11e or 11f. See Form 990, Part X.
line 25.

1. (■) Deseriptkyi of Babltlty (b) Bookvaliie '  - • . ' - i

(1) Federal income taxes
(2)
(3)
(4) •  •- E" 7- -

1  • . -■ ;(5)
(8) >' ■ ■■ ■ . .
(7) .  .. :
(S)
(9) t  ■ .

TotaL(CoAmnibjj7)usfaq(/a/For7nS90;PBrfXco/. (Gp line 25.) > t ..1—^ ■ ... 1 - .1 II .

2. Liability for uncertain tax positions, in Part XIII, provide the text of the footnote to the organization's flnanda! statements that reports the
organization's liability tor uncertain tax positions under RN 48 (ASC 740). Check here if the text of the footnote has t>een provided In Part XIII □

Schwluto D (Form Oecq 2017



Sdiadult 0 (Form 690) 2017

Pnrt XI

Paoa4
ReconcUatlon of Revenue per Audited Financial Statements With Revenue per Return.
Complete If the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV. line 12a.

Total revenue, oalns, and other support per audited financial statements

Amounts Included on Pne 1 but not on Form 990, Part VIII, Gne 12:

Net unrealized gains (losses) on Investments .

Donated services and use of faculties . . v. : . .

Recoveries of prior year grants.: .. . . .
Other (Describe in Part XIII.) . . . , .. . ; > r- ;

Add Ones 2a through 2d . . .. . . . . j. .
Subtract line 2e from line 1 . . , ...... ... .
Amounts included on Form 990, Part VIII, Gne 12, but not on line 1:

Investment expenses not included on Form 990, Part VIII, Gne 7b
Other (Describe In Part XIII.)

Add lines 4a and 4b

2a

•• 2b

2c

* • • ♦ 2d

•* r

4a

4b

8  Total revenue. Add lines 3 and 4c. (This must equsJ Form 990, Part I, tine 12.)

2b

Ac

Pcll l XII Reconciliation of Expenses per Audited Financial Statements With Expenses per Return.
Complete If the organization answered "Yes* on Form 990, Part IV. line 12a.

1  Total expenses and losses per audited financial statements . .
2  Amounts Included on line 1 but not on Form 990, Part IX. line 26:

a Donated services and use of fadittles >- . > i' . . .

b Prior year adjustments . ..

c Other fosses .. .. .. ... .• .

d Other (Describe in Part XIII.)

o Add lines 2a through 2d . ,j ... .. ... ... ,
3  Subtract line 2e from line 1 v, V' ,y >• . i,
4  Amounts included on Form 990. Part IX, line 25, but not on fine 1:

a  Investment expenses not included or Form 990, Part VIII, line 7b

b Other (Describe In Part XIII.}

c Add lines 4a and 4b 'i- .

6  Total expenses. Add lines 3 and 4c. (This must equal Fbim 990, Part /. line 18.)

2s

4a

4b

Par-t Xlil

i  ■'
2b t

2c ,  1

2d
2e

4c

Supplemental Information.
Provide the descriptions required for Part II, lines 3.5, and 0; Part 01. lines la and 4; Part IV. lines lb and 2b: Part V, line 4; Part X line
2; Part XI, lines 2d and 4b; and Part XII, lines 2d and 4b. Also complete this part to provide any additional information.

BAA REVoari2noPRO SdMduto D (Fonn B0(9 2017
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Pnrl XIII

P^6

Supplemental Information (continued)
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SCHEDULE L

{Form 890 or 990-EZ)

Depetment of the T>i*wry
Intamij RaMTwe Swlee

Transactions With interested Persons
>■ Comploto K the urgartotten answerod "Yea* on Form 890, Part IV, Drw 28a, 28l>, 26,27,28e,

28b, or 280, or Form 990-EZ. Part V, Bne 88a or 40b.
P-Attach to Form 990 or Form 99(KEZ.

► Qo to wwwJn.ffov/FotmS90 for Inetwctfone and the lateet htforwetton.

0MB No. 154»XM7

1©17
Opci> To Piitjilc
lii^peolion

Name of the organizBtion

Northeaat Deaf & Hard of Hearing Services
Pnt I I

Employer htanttOoatton moniMr

02-0517861

Excass Benefit Transactions (section 501 (c)(3), section 501 (c)(4), and 501 (c){29) organizations only).

1  (b) Name of dbgusSffod peroon (b) Rstadortshlp between dbquellfled pereon end
oroerdzsUon

(c| Deecrlptlon of beniBCtlon
(cQ Oorreetad?

Yee No

(1)
»
(3)
(4)
R)
(B)

under section 4958

Enter the amount of tax, if any, on line 2, above, reimbursed by the organization
►

► $

Part li Loans to and/or From biterested Persons.
Complete if the organization answered "Yes* on Form 990-EZ, Part V, line 38a or Form 990, Part IV, line 26; or if the
organization reported an amount on Form 990, Part X, tine 5, S, or 22.

M None of IntereBted pereon (b) Hela0qo*lp
tfdth organization

(^Purpoeeof
locvi

(d)Loenteer
fromihe

organtzation?

(e) Origins
prindpai amount

(6 Balance due (g) In defaiit? 04 Approved
1^ board or

QWItlen
agreement?

To From Yee Ko Yeo No Yee No

(1)
(2)
P)
W
(5)
(6)
GO
(B)
(B)

(10)
I—::-! 11 • • ■}

IrgftlNI Grants or Assistance Benefiting Interested Persons.

M Name of Interested person (b) Relationship between Interested
person and the orgartlzation

|c) Amount of assistance (4 type of asslstarKa (s) Purpose of saststancs

(1)
(2)
(3)
(4)
R)
(6)
(7)
R)
(9)

(10)
For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instnictlons for Form 990 or 990-EZ.
0^ REVoenviBPRO

ScttMSSt L (Fofm 980 or eeo-EZ) 2017



Sctisdul* L (Form 890 or eso-EZ) 2017

Part IV

pqqo 2

Business Transscttena tiwolvtng luteiwted Persona.
Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 28a, 28b, or 28c.

(a) Nomo of liitBfBotaJ pmon M Rotadonthlp botwoon
Intsrectad poreon vmJ tho

ofowifagMon

|c) Amount of
tranaictton

|(Q OMcriptlon of transaction MShartngaf
ofganbtdon's
rsvgnuss?

Yss No

(1) THOMAS DOWNES SPOUSE OF EXEC DIR 1,596. CONSULTING S INSTRUCTING X

(2)

(3)

W

(6)

(7)
(8)

(9) 1
m O
Part V Supplemental Information

Provide additional Information for responses to questions on Schedule L (see Instructions).

Scheduio L (Form 880 or 990-Gq 2817



SCHEDULE 0

(Form 990 or 990-EZ}

Department of the Tmtsury
tntemil Hewenue Bervtoe

Supplemental Information to Fomi 990 or 990^Z
Com plats to provide tnfonnaHon for responses to apocMc questions on

Form 990 or 990-EZ or to provide any additional Information.

► Attach to Form 990 or 980-EZ. i
► Oo to wwwJn^jcvlFomtgoo for the latest Infortnatioa |

0MB No. 1945-0047

0(>on to Public
Inspcciioh

Name of the orgenttstion

Northeast Deaf & Hard of Hearina Services

EmployBr fdentfficetlon number

02-0517861

Pt VI, Line lib; The executive director reviews the Form 990 before it is filed

Pt Line 12c: Directors are required to disclose annually any conflicts

Pt IX, Line 24e:

De script ion: Consulting

Total: $16,955

Program services; $l_8y_955

Management and general; $0

Fundraislng; $0

Description: Dues» Subscriptions, Licenses _

Total: $1/059

Progr^^ services; $250

Management and general: $809

_rundrai^r^: _$0

Description; Referral Fees _

Total: $110

Progr«un services; $110

_:Man^Ment and general: $0. _ _ .

_Fundraisin_g :_$^ _

■ Description; _Staff ̂ Development ^

Total: $1,145

Program services; $945

Management and general; $200 _

Fundraislng: $0 _

Descrj^tion_;_^uppl^es _ _

Total: $4,453

For Psporworfc Roduction Act Notice, soo the instructions for Ferm 090 or 000-EZ. bAA Schedule O (Form 080 er oeo-E2) (2017)

R£V09n2napRO



8d>«duleOfofmaQOorQOO-EZ)p017) Pigt 2
Name of th» onjsrtzflllon

Northeast Deaf 6 Hard of Hearing Services

Diipiuy Mindnetlan nurabf

02-0517861

Program services; $2,293

Management _ and general 160

Fundralsinq; $0

Description; Telephone^ Pagers

Total: $6,271

Program servicest __?7, 407

— Manag^^ent^_and g.enera 1_; $864

Fundraising; $0

Description: MISCELXANIOUS

Total: $4,966

_ PrograJfl services: $2,928

Management and general; $2,038

FTjndraisinq: $0

_  ,?■?■?

Total: $50

Program services; $0

Management and general: $50

Fundraising; $0

eclMdul* 0 (Form 000 or 090-EZ) (2017)
REVoanznsPRO



Northoast Deaf & Hard of Hearing Servfcae 020517861

Additional information from your 2017 Federal Exempt Tax Return

Form 990: Return of Organization Exempt from Income Tax

Line 9, column (A) Itemlzatlon Statement

Description Amount

Prepaid Expenses 5,923.

Security Deposit 3,000.

Total 8,923.

Form 990: Return of OrganlzatJon Exempt from Income Tax

Line 17, column (A) Itemlzatlon Statement

Description Amount

Accounts Payable 10,824.

D iscoverC iBdl:C axri 0.

Acoounts PayabJfe 0.

Accrued Wages 0.

403B Payable 0.

NH U nem pbym ent 0.

Accrued Expenses - Other 34,313.

Total 46,137.



mNDHHS
NerdeM Dof md

Bard odHariat Su lint. Ik

Board Members and Contact Information

As of: October n, 2018

56 Old Suncook Rd. Suite 6, Concord, NH 03301

603-224-1850 Voice, 603-968-5889 VP

603-856-0242 Fax, 603-224-0691TTY

www.ndhhs.org

Board Members:

The governing board of Northeast Deaf and Hard of Hearing consists of nine to eleven members. At least fifty-one percent of the board must
be Deaf or Hard of Hearing. The primary duties of the board are to supervise the Executive Director, develop policies for the agency, oversee
the agency's finances and to raise funds. Between meetings, members are expected to be on committees and to actively raise funds. The
average commitment for our board members is about four hours per month.

Chairmqn of the Board:

M/choe/ Rifter

Executive Committee

Email: mikeritter07@amail.com

Term Ends: October 2018

VIce-Chalrman:

Norman Lafond, Sr.

Executive Committee

Email: bianormsr@comcast.net

Term Ends: July 2018

Treasurer

V/ncent Youmafz

Executive Committee

Email: vvoumatz@voumatzlaw.com

Term Ends: October 2018

Secretary:

Peter Simoneau

Executive Committee

Email: Detersimoneau@comcast.net

Term Ends: January 2019

Board Member

Eileen Flockharf

Auction Chairperson

Email: hartfiock@comcast.net
Term Ends: January 2018

Board Merhber

Deborah Bailey

Board Member

Email: 4bailev@comcast.net

Term Ends: January 2021

Board Member

Tina Cook

Board Member

Email: tinasian2@mvfairDoint.net

Term Ends: October 2019

Board Member

Charlotte Rice

Boord Member

Email: chariotte.rice59@vahoo.com

Term Ends: May 2020

Board Member

Claude Boucher

Board Member

Email: claudefroaav@comcast.net

Term Ends: May 2020

Board Member

Chrisf/ne Greenwood

Board Member

Email: careenwood@walDolebank.com

Term Ends: October 2020

Board Member

Christopher Emerson

Board Member

Email: chrisemerson/1 @amail.com

Term Ends: July 2021

Board Member

Mary Beth Kula
Board Member

Email: marvbkula@amail.com

Term Ends: July 2021

Board Member

Open

Board Member

Email:

Term Ends: January 20.

Fiii\HR\BoD Org Chart 10-11-2018



Susan Wolf-DowneSt MS
Northeast Deaf and Hard of Hearing Services, Inc.

56 Old Suncook Roadj Suite 6
Concord, New Hampshire 03301

swolf-downes@ndhhs.org

Executive Director - Northeast Deaf and Hard of Hearing Services, inc. Manage an organization was
established in April 2001 to serve the Deaf, Hard of Hearing, Late Deafened and Deai/BUnd communities.
Act as liaison with the New Hampshire State Legislature on issues related to the Deaf, Hard of Hearing,
Late Deafened, Oral Deaf, Deaf/Blind and individuals who have multiple disabilities in addition to hearing
loss. Oversight the centralize organization related to hearing loss issues. Provide advocacy and
presentations to state, schools, hospitals, and private agencies to inform them about NDHHS services.
Search for funding sources to provide continued financial support for the center. Provide supervision and
support for 8 FT staff members, over 50 consultants and several outsource positions. Plan and oversee
community services including but not limited to the following:

Communication Access Services (Interpreter & CART referral)

Emergency Medical Interpreter Services (EMIS)

Service Coordination/Advocacy

Information Referral and Service Coordinatioh

Services for Deaf and Hard of Hearing Students
NH Telecommunication Equipment Assistance Program

I-Connect Program Equipment Distribution Program for D/B
RelayNH Outreach

Family Sign Language

Equipment and Materials Loan Program

Proeram Specialist - Verizon Center for Customers with Disabilities (VCCD), Marlboro, MA 1995 to 2001

• Outreach Coordinator for the Verizon Equipment Distribution Program for all Disabilities:
•  Equipment Program & Services/Products Presentations
• Outreach Cost Analysis

•  Interpreter Services

• Conduct Public Relations activities for Verizon, Provide staff support for Residential Customer Service
Center, Represent Verizon to various Deaf and disability groups and organizations. Deliver training on
Deaf and Disabled customers; to new Verizon Representatives at VCCD, Provide presentations to various
consumer groups and Verizon customers, Network / consult with various key departments witto
Verizon to enstire provision of optimum services to all customers within New England and New York,
Knowledge and operation of CPE (Customer Premise Equipment) network

Outreach Manager - N.E. Telephone Dual Party Relay Services, Marlboro, MA 1991-1995
• Assisted in development and creation of dual party relay services as mandated by passage of

Massachusetts Senate 390, which established requirements for provision of such services as well as
equipment distribution and E911 services.

•  Provided initial training for current management team and New England Telephone Operator Services
• Develop new and additional training materials for new hires
•  ServedontheMaine Advisory Board Coimcil 1993-1997

Independent Livine Skills Specialist - Center for Living and Working, Worcester, MA. 1988 - 1991.



•  Conducted advocacy and skills training for Deaf children and adults
• Advocacy with clients in court systems
•  Certified Deaf Interpreter

American Sien Laneuaee and Deaf Culture Consultant 1984 to present

• Used to hold RSC interpreter certification
• Training to agencies and residence serving Deaf clients with cognitive impairments
•  Communication evaluation and training for Deaf clients with cognitive impairments
• Relay interpreting in medical and mental health settings
• American Sign Language Instructor at various Universities, Colleges and Community Education

programs

•  Provided Deaf Culture workshops

EDUCATION'.

• Masters of Science in Management • New England College May-2006

• Bachelor of Science in Management - Lesley University, Cambridge, MA May - 2000

• Associate of and Sciences in Business - Rochester Institute of Technology / National Technical
Institute for the Deaf

Rochester, NY May - 1971

PROFESSIONAL A CTIVITIES:

AfBliations:

("
State Rehabilitation Council (SRC) ex-OfBco
Chairp^on for Statewide Independent Living Center (SILC) ex-Offico
Board of Trustees for New England Home for the Deaf (NEHD) ex-Offico (20 years)
National Registry of Interpreters (expired)
Formerly Chair and now Board of Trustees for Our Deaf Sisters' Center (OSDC)
Former Membership Chair Disability Issues Awareness Leaders (Verizon)
Alpha Sigma Alpha Sorority, NH State Associate for the Deaf, National Association for the Deaf

Achle

L..

ements:

2012 St. Mary's School for the Deaf Distinguished Award (June, 2012)
Nominated for Citizen of the Year (December 2010)

Executive Director's Award fix)m New Hampshire Association for the Deaf (June, 2007)

One of the 10 finalists for the Robert Wood Foimdation Award (May, 2006)
One of the 4 nominated for New Hampshire Athena Award (4/19/06)

State of New Hampshire Craig R. Benson Govemor-CITATION Award (11/21/03)
2003 R,I.T. Alumni Distinguished Award (10/10/03)

2003 SMSD AA Hall of Fame (Leadership Award) (6/28/03)
2002 Co-Master of Ceremony, Deaf Women United Conf. (DWU)
2001 First Executive Director for the State of NH

2001 Lady of Ceremony, Miss Deaf Massachusetts Pageant
2000 Allies Planning Team 5*^ year (my role as a facilitator)
1998 Champion Award of the Year - Quota Club District 35

1998 Co-chair Allies Conference



r

Presenter;

1994 MSAD Vice President (2 years)

1994 NYNEX (now known as Verizon) Chairman's Team Award for Quality
1994 Chairperson-Mass. State Association for the Deaf, Interpreter Task Force
1990 Woman of the Year - Quota Club District 29

On going speaker for Quota, Lions, Rotary Clubs, Hospitals Md Businesses
Moderator ASLTA (American Sign Language Teacher Association) (March 22 2003)
DWU Co-Presenter on Domestic Violence (November 2002)
100^ Anniversary for New England Home for the Deaf (Master of Ceremony, November 2001)
Flying Hands, Links Art Program / Fundraising (Co-Master of Ceremony, April 2001)
Miss Massachusetts Pageant (Master of Cereniony, April 2001)
Verizon Jane Doe Event, Boston, MA (October, 2000)

Telecommunication for the Deaf Intemational Conference, Anchorage, Alaska, Boston, MA,
Washington, DC
National Association for the Deaf Conference, Knoxville, TN

New Hampshire State Association for the Deaf Conference, Manchester, NH
Massachusetts State Association for the Deaf Conference, Boston, MA

Massachusetts Commission for the Deaf and Hard of Hearing event, MA
Maine State Association event, Baxter, ME

St. Mary's School for the Deaf - 30^ Anniversary Alumni Reunion, Buffalo, NY
Disability Issues Awareness Leaders (Verizon) Disability Event, New Yoik City, NY
Archbishop Ryan Memorial Institute School for the Deaf / 75*^ Anniversary, Philadelphia, PA

References:

Furnished upon request
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PAMELA D. LOVEJOY

EDUCATION

Gallaudet University, Washington, D.C.
Master of Arts, Dual license in Deaf Education and Early Childhood Education Dec. 2012
Certification: Deaf and Hard of Hearing Infants, Toddlers and Families Aug. 2012
CPA: 3.99/4.0

College of the Holy Cross, Worcester, MA
Bachelor of Arts, Psychology, Deaf Studies Certificate May 2009
GPA: 3.58/4.0 Honors: Cum Laude

EXPERIENCE

Northeast Deaf and Hard of Hearing Services, Concord, NH
Teacher ofthe Deaf/Deaf &. Hard of Hearing Early Intervention Specialist July 2017-present
■  Collaborate with Family-Centered Early Supports and Services area agencies and school districts

across NH to provide consultation and direct services
■  Complete initial, ongoing and transition to.Part B assessments/evaluations
■  Participate in IFSP and lEP meetings
■  Provide trainings related to working with children who are deaf or hard of hearing
■ Host monthly roundtable discussions/workshops for &milies and professionals

The Maine Educational Center for the Deaf & Hard of Hearing, Brewer, ME
Teacher of the Deaf/Early Childhood and Family Services Consultant Nov 2014-June 2017
■  Provided home visits, specially designed instruction and consultation services to families, their

children who are deaf or hard of hearing, ages 0-5, and educational programs
■  Participated in IFSP and lEP team meetings
■  Collaborated with regional early intervention team memb^ ̂d attended team meetings on a

weekly basis
■  Completed assessments for eligibility and transition purposes
■ Maintained up to date records through a statewide computer data system

Onslow County Partnership for Children, Jacksonville, NC
Early Head Start Home Visitor July 2013-Oct 2014
• Delivered comprehensive services to low-income families and their children, ages 0-3, as well as

expectant femilies in a home-based setting
■  Collaborated with &milies on a weekly basis to develop and prepare lesson plans for their

children

■  Partnered with community agencies to provide resources and referrals to families
• Maintained accurate and timely documentation for all services provided
■  Planned and facilitated bi-monthly group socialization experiences for children and families

Davila Day School for the Deaf, San Diego, CA
Substitute Teacher Jan-April 2013
■  Instructed approxiihately 6-8 deaf/hard of hearing preschool students in a special education

program



California School for the Deaf, Riverside, Riverside, CA
Student Teacher Fall 2012

■  Responsible for fiill-day planning and twching of first grade students for a period of 10 weeks
■  Developed and supervised activities for children ages 3-18 during the weekly family sign classes

Montgomery County Infants and Toddlers Program, Montgomery County, MD
Intern Spring 2012
•  Observed weekly home visits, team meetings assessments and development of an IFSP

Bridges Public Charter School, Washington, D.C.
Student Teacher Spring 2012
■  Assumed all classroom roles and responsibilities in a preschool ̂ tting (ages 3-5)
■  Assisted supervising teacher with classroom activities, lessons and plans

(  ■)

June 2009rFeb 2010
Princeton in Asia Fellowship, Nan, Thailand
Teaching Fellow , ,
■  Taught English to over 200 students in nqithem Thailand, ages 9-11
■ Developed wMkly lesson plans and mat^als to provide English instruction to second language

learners

University of Massachusetts Early Intervention and Family Support Program, Worcester, MA
Intern Spring 2009
■  Shadowed a speech ̂ d language pathologist on weekly home visUs and intakes
• Assisted with weekly playgroups for children ages 0-3 with developmental delays, observing

development and writmg daily progress reports for each child

LICENSES/CREDENTIALS
State of New Hampshire

■ . T^her.oftheDeafmid Hard of Hearing

State of Maine
•  Teacher of the Deaf and of Hearing

State of North Carolina
■  Early Childhood Education (Pre-K/K)
■  Elemental Education (K.-6)
■  Deaf Education (K-12)

District of Columbia
■  Early ChUdhoodEducation
■  Special Education (K-12)

American Sign Language Proficiency Interview (ASLPI), Level 3

05/03/2017

12/08/2014

03/06/2014

01/17/2013

03/26/2011
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Gayle P. Baird

Experience

Northeast Deaf and Hard of Hearing Services, Inc. (NDHHS), Concord NH 05/2015 - Present
Accountant I Human Resources I Payroll

Perform highly complex budgetary work as well as more diverse administrative duties involving fiscal,
personnel/payroll, and purchasing management necessary for general function of multiple projects within
the organization. Additional tasks include; Accounts Payable and Receivable processing, grant and
contract tracking and review, HR Policies and Procedures documentation, and supervision of staff.
NH Governor's Commission on Disability, Concord NH 12/2007 - 05/2015

Accountant 11 Human Resources I Payroll
Perform complex budgetary work as well as diverse admin duties to Include personnel and payroll,
project contracts for both state and federal, purchasing, A/P and A/R management necessary for general
function of multiple organizational codes.
NH Governor's Commission on Disability, Concord NH 06/2005 -12/2007

Senior Accounting Technician
Review, process, and report A/P & A/R as well as budget creation, employee management, grants,
strategic planning organization, member tracking, purchasing and inventory control, and payroll.
NH Govemor's Commission on Disability, Concord NH 09/2004 - 06/2005

Secretary II
Supervision of other employees doing related or similar work, including scheduling, time, accuracy,
periormance appraisal, discipline, and recommending interviewing, hiring or terminating.
ProTemps, Concord NH 02/2004 - 09/2004

Temporary Accounting Staff to Pembroke Academy
Douglas, Leonard & Garvey, PC, Concord NH 11/2002 - 02/2004

Bookkeeper
Merges two accounting packages Into one. Responsible for all data entry and payroll.
Lavallee/Brensinger, PA, Manchester NH 07/1993 - 11/2002

Administrative Assistant

Draft/fonmat/proof confidential correspondence; architectural specifications; dictation for staff;
update/create master docs, reports, templates, and forms. Backup assistant for accounting data entry.
BONHAM (BankOne NH Asset Management, a section of the FDIC taking receivership of 13 banks in
NH), Concord NH

ORE File Library Supervisor 04/1992 - 07/1993
Developed the library; trained/supervised 2 staff & volunteers, generated reports and audits regarding
data collection and distribution of properties.
BONHAM (BankOne NH Asset Management, a section of the FDIC taking receivership of 13 banks in
NH), Concord NH

Database Manager and Admin Assistant II 07/1991 - 04/1992
Addressed the growing list of received properties managed by various banks and processed by various
loan officers.

Office Specialists, Manager & Central NH Employment, Laconia, NH
Temp Secretary & Admin Assist to real estate, Financial, Legal Firms 03/1991 - 06/1991

Education

Franklin Pierce University, Concord, NH - Working on Bachelor of Science in Business Management and
Accounting (2 courses from Certificate) Ongoing

SoNH - HR Certificate Program 08/2008
SoNH - Certified Public Supervisor Program 06/2006
SoNH - Certified Public Supervisor Program Tune-up 09/2008

(  Justice of the Peace, NH Current, Expires 10/03/2017
Notary, NH Current, Expires 11/14/2017
Littleton High School, Littleton, MA - Business/Office Program 06/1971

Page 1

(



f" Marion James

Experience

AHministrative Assistant. Northeast Deaf and Hard of Hearing Services 2018-current

I am currently working as the Administrative Assistant at NDHHS. Job responsibilities include
information referrals, service coordination, event organization, as well as other miscellaneous office tasks.

Support Service Provider 2016-current

I work with DeafBlind individuals as a mobility guide to provide independence out in the community.

This is done through providing transportation, serving as a guide while waking, and relaying visual and
auditory, environmental information.

Interpreter Referral Specialist. Northeast Deaf and Hard of Hearine Services 2017-2018

I worked as a contracted referral specialist for a non-profit in the Deaf services sector. Job responsibilities
included processing ASL-Englisb Interpreter/CART requests via phone, email, videophone, etc.

ASL Peer Tutor. UNH Manchester 2016-2018

As a student, I worked as the ASL Peer Tutor for the ASL-English Interpreting major at UNH-
Manchester. I supported students by holding office hours and providing a safe space for practice.

Welcome Center Representative. Granite YMCA 2016-2018

I worked as a Welcome Center Representative at the Downtown branch of the Granite YMCA. I was
responsible for membership sign-ups and information, and data entry. I was also the first contact for
members'questions, concerns, tours, etc.

Corporate HR Office Assistant. Granite YMCA 2017

I worked as an office assistance in the HR department of the Granite YMCA's corporate Office. Duties

included tasks related to data management, organization, event preparation, etc.

Internal Auditor. General Composites. Inc. 2014-2015

I conducted internal IS09001:2008 Quality Management System audits. Conducted Sensitive Operations
audits (intellectual property, corporate espionage, etc.), including ITAR (Internal Trafficking of Arms
Regulations) export-controls standards.
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Education

UNH Manchester: BS ASIVEnglish Interpretation 2015-2018

Gallaudet University: Summer ASL Immersion Program 2015/2016/2017

Middleburv College: Summer Spanish Immersion Program 2014

Colbv-Sawver College: BA History and Political Science, Minor in Business 2010-2014

ST TNV Pntsdam- Miscellaneous classes 2010-2014

SUNY Plattsburgh: Miscellaneous classes 2010-2014

Willsboro Central School: Advanced NYS Regents Diploma

Skills: Data Management, Microsoft Office, Event Planning, Not-For-Profit Organization, Basic
Accounting, American Sign Language

Interests: Volunteerism, Girl Scouts, Outdoor Recreation, Arts, Language, CrossFit, Running/Fitness,

Nutrition

Certifications: First Aid, CPR

Volunteering: Gallaudet University Research Center Shared Reading Program; Northeast Deaf and Hard

of Hearing Services

Recent Workshops: ASL/English Semantics (Cokely); ASL Storytelling (Humphries); Incorporating Non-

Manual Markers (Bruce); What the Blank?!? (Fairell); Foundations 1 (Colonomous); Depiction (Bronk)

Recent Awards: ASL/English Interpreting Program Award, Presidential Scholar Award, Summa Cum

Laude

L...



YEAR 1

Northeast Deaf & Hard of Hearing Services

Key Personnel

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from

this Contract

Amount Paid from

this Contract

Susan Wolf-Downes Exec. Director 71,540 2 1,430

Pam Lovejoy ProR Coord (TOD) 50,002 33.502 16,751

Gayle Baird Accountant 46,562 2.175 1,012

Marion James Admin Assistant 26,032 1 260

YEAR 2

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from

this Contract

Amount Paid from

this Contract

Susan Wolf-Downes Exec. Director 72,971 2 1459

Pam Loveioy Prog Coord (TOD) 51,002 33.615 17,144

Gayle Baird Accountant 47,493 2.175 1,033

Marion James Admin Assistant 26,553 1 265


